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DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors present their Report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the year ended 30th Line 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND TRADING RESULTS
The principal activities of the Group are plantations, properly, heavy equipment, motor vehicie, energy and utilities, and general trading and services

The Company is a limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia The Compary is principally an investment holding company it
glso engages in trading and marketing of commodities and provides management services to its subsidiary compares

There has been no significant changs in the principal activities of the Group and of the Company during the year An analysis of the resUlts for the year
is shown In Note 42 on the financlel statements

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The audited financial statements for the year ended 30th june 2007 submitted with this Report show:-

Group Company

RM million RM millicn
Profit after taxation 1,597.4 899
Minority interests (31.7) -
Net profit for the year atiributebie to shareholders 1,005.7 89.9

DIVIDENDS
The dividends paid and proposed by the Company since 36th June 2006 were as follows:-

RM million
in respect of the year ended 30th June 2006

P
o0

Finat dividend of 24 78 sen gross per share, comprising 15 78 sen per share less Malaysian tax 87,
at 275, 5.0 sen per share Malaysian tax exempt and 4 0 sen per share less Singapore tax at
20%, paid on 15th December 2006

In respect of the year ended 30th Jung 2007

{me

First interim dividend of 5 0 sen gross per share less Malaysian tax at 27%, paid on 18th May 1.
2007

On 28th August 2007, the Directors declared the payment of a second interim dividend of 25.2 sen gross per share, comprising 13 7 sen per share less
Malaysian tax at 27%, 50 sen per share Malaysian tax exempt and 6 5 sen per share less Singapore tax at 8%, which will be paid on 26th October
2007 The entitlement date for the dividend payment is 28th September 2007

A depositor shall gualify for entitiement to the dividend only in respect of -

@  shares deposited into the depositor's securities account before 12:30 pm on 26th September 2007 in respect of shares which are exempted
from rmandatory deposit;

@  shares transferred into the depasitor's securities account before 4:00 p m. on 28th September 2007 In respect of transfers; and
{ity shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitement basis according to the Rules of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

The declared second interim dividend and the first interim dividend pald on 18th May 2007 amgunt to a total distribution of 30 2 sen gross per share
for the year
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DIRECTORS REFORT (CONTINUED)

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
All materiat transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the year are shown respectively in the financial statements

SHARE CAPITAL

puring the year, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was increased from 2,465,520,674 ordinary shares of RM0O 50 each to
2,522,028,674 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each by the issue of 3,151,000 new ordinary shares at RM4 50 per share, 2,957,000 new ordinary shares at
RM5 08 per share, 210,000 new ordinary shares at RMS 09 per share, 10,332,000 new ordinary shares at RMS 47 per share, 30,525,000 new ordinary
shares at RMS 41 per share and 9,333,000 new ordinary shares at RMS 28 per share, for cash purstiant to the exercise of options under the Sime Darby
Employees' Share Option Scheme

There was no change in the authorised capital of the Company during the year

The sharehotters of the Company had, at the Annual Genera! Meeting held on 7ify November 2006, granted a mendate for the Company to purchase,
upon such terms and conditions as the Directors may deer fit, up 0 ten per centum (10%) of the issued and paid-up capitel of the Company The
mandate will expire at the canclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Mesting. The Company has rict made any purchase of Sime Darby Berhad
shares during the year

SIME DARBY EMPLOYEES' SHARE OPTION SCHEME
During the year, no new options were granted pursuant to the Sime Darby Emipioyees' Share Option Scheme ("the Scheme™)

AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS
A Sponspred Level 1 Americars Depository Receipts ("ADR") Programme for shares of the Company ("ADR Programme”) was registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States of America on 27th August 1999

Under the ADR Programime, a maximum of 20 million ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately 0 81% of its total ssued and paid-up
capital, will be traded in ADRs in the United States of Amarica, in the ratio of 1 {one) share to 1 {one) ADR The Company's trading symbo! on the over-
the-counter market in the United States of America is SIDGY and its CUSIP number is 828617 308

Trie Depository Bank for the ADR Programme is The Bank of New York and the sole Custodian of the Company's shares for the ADR Programme is
Malayan Banking Berhad, Kusla Lumpur

As at 28th August 2007, there were 31,528 shares of the Company deposited with Malayan Banking Barhad for the ADR Programme and there were
31,528 ADRs outstanding

The Coempany had, on 22nd August 2007, issued a natice of termination of the ADR Programme to The Bank of New York The termination wili take
gffect on 22nd September 2007
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CHANGES IN GROUFP ASSETS

The following significant acquisitions and disposals were made during the year:-

H

11

On 14tk July 2006, Sime Darby Brunsfield Holding Sdn. Bhd. subscrined for the entire equity interest in Sime Darby Brunsfield Australia Pte
Lt ("SDB Austratia”) SDB Austraiia halds 70% equity Interest in Oyster Cove international Pty Ltd. {"0CI") OCI will be principally involved in
property devalopment

On 24th July 2006, Sime Malaysia Region Berhad, Sime Darby Nominees Sendirian Berhad and SD Holdings Berhad completed the dispesal
of all their respective equity interests in Century Automotive Products Sdn. Bhd. totaling 99 64% for RM19 6 million

On 25th July 2006, Sime Darby Motors {Nissan China) Holdings Limited completed the disposal of its 90% equity interest in Yunnan Sime
winner Motor Services Co, Limited for RMBS5 5 miflion

On 31st July 2006, Sima Darby Eastern Limited acquired the entire equity interest in Sime O & M (Thalland) Co Ltd. (formerly known as
Fortum Energy Solutions (Thailand) Company Limited) ("Sime O & M) for a tota! cash consideration of Euro 1:125 milllon The principal
activity of Sime O & M is the provision of operation and maintenance services to power plants in Thailand, including Laem Chabang Power
Company Limited

On 31st August 2006, BMW Concessionaires (HK) Limited acquired the entire registered capital of Yunnan Bow Yue Vehicle Trading
Company Limited ("YBYVT") for RMB10 0 miflion. The principal activities of YBYVT are the retalling of branded automoniles and related
spare parts, and the provision of after-sales services and management consuling services on automobile sales

on 13th Septernber 2005, Sime Darby Motors Sdn Bhd completed the compuisory acquisition of ali the remaining shares held by the
minority shareholders of Hyundai-Sime Darby Berhad ("HSDY) for a totat consideration of approximately RM3 million, in canjunction with the
volurtasy withdrawal of HSD from the Official List of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad pursuant to Paragraph 1604 of the Listing
Requirements of Bursa Securities

On 15th October 2006, Sime Consulting 5dn. Bhd entered into a Joint Venture Agreement with Golden Hope Plantations 8arhad,
Permodalan Nasional Bernad, Kumpulan Gushrie Berhad and PNB Enterprise S5dn Bhd ("PNBE") to regulate the equity participation and the
conduct and affairs of PNBE Each joint venture party holds 25% equity participation in #NBE. The principal activity of PNBE is animal
husbandry including the rearing of sheep, goats, cattle and other (ivestock. . :

©n 30th October 2006, Shanghal Xin Bizo Xian Motor Commerce Company imited ("SXBX') was incorporated as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sime Darby Motor Group (HK) Limited The principal activities of SXBX will be the retailing of automobiles manufaciured by
Rolls-Rayee Motor Cars Limited

On 1st Novemnber 2006, Sime Darby Eastern Limited completed the disposal of its 29 3% equity interest in Jaya Holdings Limited for 58301
mililon

on 25th November 2006, Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited acguired an additional 15% equity interest each in Weifang Sime Darby Port Co
Ltd and Weifang Sime Darby Water Co Ltd for USD15 million and USDS5 million, respectively.

0N 164 January 2007, Zice Sime Darby Chemicals Co Lid (*Zibo Sime Darby") was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China as a 51%
ownet subsidiary of Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of Zibo Sime Darby Is the production and sale of polyaluminium
chloride, a water treatment chemical

On 18th Janlary 2007, Marksworth Limited acquired 4% and 5% ecuity interest In Weifang Sime Darby Port Co- 44d and Weifang Sime Darby
Water Co.Ltd for USDS million and USD2 millior, respectively
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13 On 14th February 2007, Sime Malaysia Reglon Berhad comppleted the disposal of its 51% equity interest in Sime Conoco Energy Sdn. Bhd
for USD0.5 million

14 On 13th April 2007, SD Heldings Berhad and Sime Darby Nominees Sendirian Berhad completed the disposal of their respective equity
interests in Simetease Malaysia) Sdn 8hd totaling 100% for RM107 million net of inter-company dividend

15 On 27th April 2007, Sime Darby Singapore Limited completed the disposal of its 75% equity interest in PT Guru Indonesia for USD1 1 million

16 On 16th june 2007, Sime Malaysia Region Berhad completed the disposal of its entire 80% eguity Interest in Sime Inax Sdn Bhd for RM24 0
millign

DIRECTORS

The Directars who have held office during the period since the date of the last Report are as follows:-

Tan sl Dato’ Seri (Dr) Ahmad Sarji bin Abdul Hamid {Chairman)

Tunky Tan Sri Rato' Seri Ahmad bin Tunku Yahaya (©eputy Chairman)

Michael Wong Pakshong @ Michael Pakshong

patuk Khatijah bintt Ahmad

Tan Sri Abu Talib bin Othman

Rajs Tan Sri Multammad! Alias bin Raja Muhammad All

Tan Sri Datuk Or Ahmad Tauddin bin Al

Dato' Mohamed bin Suiaiman

Datuk Seri Panglima Sheng Len Tac

Raja Datuk Arshad Raia Tun Uda (appointed on 1st July 2007)

Dato’ Seri Ahmad Zubair @ Ahmad Zubir bin Hajt Murshid (Group Chief Executive)

Y Tunku Tan &ri Dato' Seri Ahmad bin Tunku Yahaya, Mr Michagl Wong Pakshong @ Michael Pakshong and YM Raja Tan Sri Muhammad Alias bin
Raja Muhammad Ali, being over seventy years of age, retire in accordance with Section 129 of the Companies Act, 19565, YM Tunku Tan St Dato’ Seri
Ahrmad and YM Raja Tan S¢l Muhamimad Alias offer themselves for re-appointment in accordance with Section 129(6) of the Act to hold office until the

conclusion of the next Annual Generat Meeting of the Company. Mr Wong will not be offering himself {or re-appointment

YM Raja Datuk Arshad Raja Tun Uda, who weas appointed on 1st July 2007, retires in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, and
being eligible, offers himself for election

The Directors retiring by rofation this year are YBhg Tan Sri Datuk Dr Ahmad Tajuddin bin All and ¥Bhg Date’ Seri Ahmad Zubair @ Ahmad Zubir bin
Haji Murshid who being eligible, offer themseives for re-election

Other than YBhg Dato’' Seri Ahmad Zubair none of the Directors rethring and offering themselves for re-appointment, election or re-glection, has a
contract of service with the Cempany

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS
During and &t the end of the year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company is a party, with the object or obiects of enabling Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares In, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate

Since the end of the previous year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than benefits disclosed as Director's
remuneration and benefits-in-kind in Note 2 on the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with
the Director ar with a firm of which he is 8 member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financlal inferest.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

According to the Register of Directors' Sharehaldings, particulars of interests of Directors who held office at the end of the financial year in shates or
options over shares in the Company during the year covered by the financial statements were as follows:-

Number of srdinary shares of RM0.50 each

Sime Darby Berhad At 1st iy 2006 Acquired Disposed At 20t june 2007
Michiael Wong Pakshong @

Michael Pakshong 45,000 - - 45,000

Datuk Khatfjah bintt Ahmad 10,000 - - 10,000

Dato’ Sert Ahmad Zubair @
Ahmad Zubir bin Haji Murshid - 248,000 (108,000) 140,000

Optlons over ordinary shares of RMO.50 each

Sime Carby Berhad At st july 2006 Granted Exercised A 30th June 2007
Dato’ Seri Ahmad Zubair @
Ahmad Zubir bin Haji Murshid 302,000 - (248,000} 54,000

According to the Register of Directors' Shiareholdings, particulars of interests of Directors who held office at the end of the financial year in shares in
or participatory interests made avaitable by, subsidiaries of the Compeny during the year covered by the financlat statements were as follows:-

Number of grdinary shares of RM0.50 each

Sime Engineering Services Berhad At 1st July 2006 Acalired Disnosed At 30th June 2007
Michael Wong Pakshong @
Michael Pakshong 10,000 - - 10,000

uale Lu r.Golf & Coun lub Berha

Participatory interest : Type of membershin
1) Tan St Dato’ Seri (Dr ) Ahmad Sarii bin Abdul Hamid Honorary
2} Tunku Tan Sri Dato’ Serf Ahmmad bin Tunku Yahaya Honaorary
3) Datuk Khatijah bint Ahmad Honorary
4 Tan Sr Aby Talib bin Cthman ! Honerary
55 Raa Tan Sri Muhammad Alias bin Raja Muhammad Al Honorary
&) ‘Tan $ri Datuk Dr Ahmad Tajuddin bin Al Honorary

No other Director in office at the end of the year held anﬁ shares In the Company or shares in, debentures of or participatory interest made available
by its subsidiaries during the year



SIME DARBY BERHAD

Company No,

41759 M

DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{a

()

Refore the Income Statement and Balance Sheet of the Group and of the Compary were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:-

)  to ascertain that proper action hiad been faken in relation to the writing off of bad dehts and the making of allowance for doubtiul debts,
and satisfied themselves that ad known bad debts had been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts;
and

{iy  toensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business, their values as shown
in the accourting records of the Group and of the Company, have been written down to amounts which they mignt he expected 1o so
realise.

At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:-

@  which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the aliowance for doubtiul debts In the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company inadegquate to any substantial extent; or

(il which wouid render the vaiues attributed to current assets in the financlal statements of the Group and of the Company misleading; or

(i) which have arisen which render adherance to the existing metiod of valustion of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company
misleading or inappropriate

{c) As at the date of this Report-

(h

(e)

@ these are no charges on the assets of the Group and of the Company which have arisen since the end of the year to secure the liablifity of
any cther person, and

fiy  there are no cortingent liabllities in the Group and in the Company which hiave arisen since the end of the year other than those arising in
the ordinary course of business

At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in the Report or financial statements which
woulld render any amount stated In the financizl statements misleading,

Ne contingent or cther liabllity has become enforceable or is likely to beceme enforceable within the pariod of twelve moniths after the end of
the year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may substentially affect the abiiity of the Group and of the Company to meet their
obligations as and when they fall due

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
In the opinion of the Directors:-

@

{b)

t1e results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the year were not substantialiy affected by any item, transaction or event
of & material and unusual nature except as disclosed in Note 4 on the financial statements; and

1o itam, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the year and the date of this Report
which is likely to affect substantislly the results of the operations of the Group and of the Cempany for the year in which this Report is made
except as disclosed in Note 46 on the financial statements
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AUDITORS
The alditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers. have expressed their willingness to continue in office

in accordance with a resciution of the Board of Directors
dated 28th August 2007

Hiogs...

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri (Dr) Ahmad Sarji bin Abdul Hamid

t Chairman

‘_"—"' - "'
Kuala tumpur Dato’ Seri Ahmad Zubgir @ Ahmad Zubir bin Haji Murshid
28th August 2007 Group Chief Executive
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies of the Group and of the Company are summarised below:

1

Basls of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and under the historical cost convention
except as dischsed in this summary of principal accounting policies

The financial staternents cormply with the Financial Reporting Standards {'FRS") issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASE"),
in Malaysia for Entities other than Private Entities including the new and revised accounting standards as disclosed in Mote 2 below

The prepazration of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of certain criticat accounting estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amiounts of assets and fiabilities and disclosure of contingent assels and lisbilities at the date of the financlal statemeants. and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period It also requires Directors to exercise their judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies Although these estimates and judgement are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual resuits may differ.

The areas Invoiving a higher degrae of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant o the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 3 below

New and revised accounting standards

During the financial year ended 30th June 2006, the Group and the Company adopted FRS 3 - Business Combinations in accounting for business
combinations where the sale and purchase agreement date is on or after 1st January 2006, and FRS 134 - Impairment of Assets and FRS 138 -
Intangible Assets in accounting for goodwill and intangible assets arsing therefrom. The new FRS, amendment to published standards and IC
Interpretations to existing standards shown below are efiective for firancial year ended 30th June 2007

« FRS1 - Flrst-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards

« FRS2 - Share-based Payment

» FRSH - Norn-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

« FRS 101 - Presentation of Financial Statements

» FRS 02 - Inventories

+ FRS 108 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
« FRS 110 - Events after the Balance Sheet Date

« FRS11s - Property, Plant and Equipment

« FRSIZ7 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

« FRS 127 - Consolidated and Separate Financlal Statements

« FRS128 - Investments in Associates

» FRS 131 - Interests in joint Ventures

+ FRS 132 - Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

* FRS 133 - Earnings Per Share

« FRS 140 - Invesiment Property

» Amendmentsto FRS 119 - Employees Benefits - Aciuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

(ir: refation to the “asset ceiling” test)

IC Interpretation 107
IC nterpretation 110
IC interpretation 112
IC interpretation 113
{C Interpretation 115
iC Interpretation 121
'C Interpretation 125
IC Interpretation 127
IC Interpretation 129
IC Interpretation 131
IC Interpretation 132

ntraduction of the Euro

Gavernment Assistance — No Specific Relation to Gperating Activities
Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities

Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Centributions by Venturers
Operating Leases ~ Incentives

- Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
- Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or Its Shareholders

Evaluating the Substance of Trangactions Involving the Legal Form of & Lease

- Disclosure ~ Service Concession Arrangements

Revenue - Barter Transactions imvolving Advertising Services
Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs
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2 New and revised accounting standards (continued)
FRS 1 and i Interpretation 107, 113 and 131 are not relevant to the Group and the Company All FRS require retrospective application except
FRS 2 and 5 and certain aspects of FRS 116, 121 and 140 which require prospective application or application in accordance with their respective
transitional provisions

The Group and the Company have also adopted the following FRS with effect from 1st July 2006 although these standards only require
application with effect from the financial period commencing on ar after 1st October 2006:

«  FREN7 - Leases
= FRS124 ~ Related Pary Disclosures

In addition, the Group and the Company have adopted the Amendment to FRS 121 issised by MASE on 15th February 2007

The adoption of FRS 121 resulied in lower peofit for the year by RM0.1 milllon and a prior year adjustment, while the other FRS and
Interpretations had lergely affected the presentation and disciosure in the financial siatements The principal impact of adopting these FRS and
Interpretations are as follows:

{a} FRS 2 - Share-based Payment
ERS 2 requires recognition of share-based payment fransactions including the vaile of share options in the financial statements There was
no financial impact following the prospective application of FRS 2 with effect from 1st uly 2006

{h} FRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
with the adoption of FRS 5, a non-current asset or disposal group is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount wili be recovered
grincipally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-cutrent assets of disposal groups are stated at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair vaiue less costs to sell

{c) FRS 101 - Presentation of Financial Statements
FRS 101 requires changes o presentation and disclosure of new classes of assets!

d  Minority interests are now presented within tota! equity in the consolidated balance sheet, and as an allocation of the net profit or
loss for the period In the consotidated income staternent. Movements in minarity interests are shown in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity

fit  share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities is now nresented net of tax in the consolidated income statement
@iy Total recognised income and expenses for the pericd are now explicitly shown in the consolidated statement of changes in eguity

() Investment properties and biclogical assets previously classified under property, piant and equipment are now shown as separate
classes of assets

pending the issuance of accounting standards on recognition and measurement of biological assets, the Group continues 1o Use the
“capital maintenance” method in the recording of these assets The capital maintenance method invoives capitalising new planting cost
without arnortisation while repianting costs are charged to the income statement in the period the expendizure is incurred The capitalised
costs will be amortised to the incorme statement enly i the land on which the trees are planted is on a lease tern The amortisation is on a
straight-line basis over the economic useful fves of the trees commencing upon maturity of the trees of the last planting cycla

{(d) FRS 117 - Leases
FRS 117 requires leasehold land to be treated as an operating lease and the transitional provision aflows the unamertised carrying amounts
of previously revalued leasehold land to be retained as surrogated carrying amounts Therefore, instead of capitalising the payments made
for the ieasehold tand and the revaluation adiustments in 1978 as property, plant and equipment, the carrying amounts of all lang and short
leasehold land are now reclassified as prepald lease rentals

The prepaid lease rentals are amortised on a straight-line basis aver the fease period, which Is similar to the depreciation policy when they
were treated as property, plant and equipment



SIME DARBY BERHAD

Company No.

41759

M

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

New and revised accounting standards {continued)
{e} FRS 121 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

i)

{i

{fiy

Functionat currency is the currency of e primary economic environment in which the entity operates and may differ from local
currency. Previously, trenslation of subsidiary's financial statements for consoiidation purposes is made only when the subsidiary's
local currency differs from the currency used by the parent FRS 121 now requires the financial statements of each subsidiary to be
measured in functionas currency of the subsidiary, and on consolidetion, all monetary and non-monetary items of the subsidiary are
yranslated to the parent's presentation currency Exchange differences arising therafrom are taken directly to exchange reserves This
requirement does not affect the results of the corresponding period as all subsidiaries’ functionat cutrencies were same as their focal
currencies during the said petiod

Previously, the Group trenslated foreign currency transactions and monetary items at contracted rates if those amourts are hedged
by forward foreign exchange contracts FRS 121 prescribes exchange rates at date of transactions to be used in translating foreign
cumrency fransactions and exchange rates as at balance sheet date for translation of monetary iterns This change in policy has

resuited in changes to the opering reserves and results reporied in the corresponding period

FRS 140 - Investment Property
The Group's land and buildings held for sental income or capital appreciation are now classified s investment properties instead of
praperty, plant and equipment Investment properties are stated at cost and amortised on a straight-fine basis to write down the cost of
each building to their residual vaites over their estimated usefut fives, which is similar to the depreciation palicy when they were {reated as
property, plant and equipment

There is no impact to the Company’s comparative figures following the adoption of the new and revised accounting standards The impact of the
above on the Group's comparative figures is shown in Note 45 on the financiat statements.

As at the date of authorisation of the financial staternents, the Group and the Company have not adopted the following FRS, amendment to
published standards and IC Interpretations, which have effective dates as follows:

s & = & & =

« & = 9

-

Amendments to FRS 119

Effective for financial pericds

- Employee Benefits ~ Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclasures
(in relation to option of an alternative recognition approach for actuarial gains and

beginning on ar after

losses} 1st January 2007

FRS & - Explaration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 15t lanuary 2007
FRS 107 - Cash Flow Statements 15t July 2007
FRS 11% - Construction Contracts 1st July 2007
FRS 112 - ncome Taxes 1st July 2007
FRS 118 - Revenue 18t July 2007
FRS 120 - Accounting for Government Grant and Disclosure

of Goverament Assistance ist july 2007
FRS 134 ~ Interim Financial Reporting Ist Juiy 2007
FRS 137 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 1st July 2067
FRS 139 - Fihancial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement effective date deferred
IC Interpretation 1 - Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration

and Simitar Liabilities 15t July 2007
iC Interpretation 2 - Members' Shares in Co-operative Entities and Similar Instruments 1st July 2007
IC interpretation 5 - Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and

Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 15t july 2007
IC Interpretation & - Liabifities arising fram Participating in a Specific Market - Waste Electrical

and Electronic Equipment 1st July 2007
IC Interpretation 7 - Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 129 - Financlal Reporting

in Hyperinflationary Economies 18t July 2007
IC Interpretation 8 -Scope of FRS 2 1st July 2007

FRS 6 and IC Interpretation 2, 5, & and 7 are not refevant to the Group and the Company The adoption of the other FRS and IC Inferpretations
axcent for FRS 139, in financial year ending 30th June 2008 are not expected to have any significant effects on the finaricial statements of the
Group and the Company FRS 139 establishes principles for recognising and measuring financial zssets, financial liabilities and some contracts ©
buy and seli non-financial items Hedge accounting is parmitted only under strict circumstances The Group will apply this standard when
effactive The Group has not disclosed the impact of FRS 13% on the financial resuits &s allowed by the accounting standard
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3 Judgement in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the Directors and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are befleved to be reasonable under the circumstances

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the
related actuat results To enhance the information content of the estimates, certain key variables that are anticipated to have materiat impact to
the Group's results and financial position are tested for sensitivity to changes in the underlying parameters. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined
beiow

{a}

(b

{c)

(@

Provisions for warranties

Provision Nas been recognised for warranties provided for the Group's products that are not covered by manufaciurer's warranties This
provision has been estimated based on historical claims experience, as well as recent trends that might suggest that historical claims
expetience may vary from future claims Factors that coutd impact the amount of future claims include the quality of products supplied by
manuiacturers and the costs of parts and labour

inventories write down
Inventories wiite down is provided based on their net realiseble value Net reatisable value is the estimate of the sefling price in the
ordinary course of business, tess cost to completion and selling expenses

construction contracts and property development projects

The Group recognises contract and property development revenue based on percentage of completion method The stage of completion is
measurad by reference to the costs incurred {0 date to the estimated total cost or the completion of a physical proportion of work to-date
significant judgement is required in determining the stage of complation, the extent of the costs incurred, the estimated total revenue (for
contracts other than fixed contracts) and costs, as well as thelr recoverability Total contract revenue also inciudes an estimation of the
variation works that are recaverabie from the customers. In making the judgement, the Group relies on past experience and work of
specialists

Basis of consoilldation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial staternents include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to the end of the
year Subsiciasies are entities in which the Group has the power to exercise cortrol over the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
nenafits from their activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable ar convertible are considered
when assessing whethar the Group controls another entity

Subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase methed of accounting The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date of their acquisition or up to the date of their disposal. On acquisition, identifisble assets,
llabilities and contingant liabilities of the subsidiaries are measured at thelr far value Adjustrents are made te the financial statements of
subsidiaries, where necessary, to ensure consistency of their accounting policies with those of the Group

The portion of profit or loss and ret assets In subsidiaries that are niot held by the Group are shawn as minrity interests Minority share of
net liabilities is only up to its limit of obligaticn in the case when the minority has a binding obligation to, and Is able to, make good the
losses

Ajl intercompany transactions and balances are sliminated on consolidation Unrealised l0sses on transactions with and between Group
companies are eliminated on consolidation to the extent of the cost of the asset that can be recovered, and the balance that provides
evidence of reduction i net realisable value or an impairment of the asset transferred are recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority shareholders as transactions with equity owners of the Group For
purchases of additional interests from minority shareholders, the difierence between considerations paid and the minority interests
acquired is adjusted to equily
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4

Basls of consclidation (continued)
{b} Assoclates

{c)

{d)

Associates are entities in which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence Sigrificant influence Is the power to participate in
the financial and aperating policy decisions, but not control over those policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consclidated financlal statements using the equity method of accounting The
cansolidated income statement and consofidated statement of changes in equity inciude the Group's share of profits less losses of
associates based on the management accounts of the companies cancerned In the consolidated balance sheet, the Group's interest in
assaciates is recorded at cost inclusive of goodwill and adjusted thereafter for accumuiated impairment loss and the post acquisition change
in the Group's share of net assets of the associates

£quity accourting is discontinued when the cerrying amount of the investmant in an associate reaches zero, or reaches the fimit of the
ohligations in the case wher: the Group has inclared abligations or guaranteed obligations in respect of the assoclate

Unrealised gains on fransactions between the Greup and its asscciates are efiminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the assoclates
Unrealised losses are aiso eliminated on the same basis but only to the extent of the costs that can be recovered, and the balance that
pravides evidence of reduction in net realisable value or an impairment of the asset transferred are recognised in the consolidated income
statement

Jointly controlled entities

Jointly controlled entities are corporations, parinerships or other entities over which there s & contractually agreed sharing of control by the
Group with one or more parties. The Groug’s interests in jeintly controlied entities are accounted for in the congolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting

£quity accounting involves recognising in the consolidated income statement and consclidated staternert of changes in eguity, the Group's
shere of profits less losses of jointly controfled entities based on the latest sudited or management accounts of the companies concemed
The Group's investments in jaintly controlied entities are carried in the constlidated balance sheet at an amount that reflects its share of the
ret assets of the jointly controlied entities The Group's invastment in jointly controlled entities includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net
of any accumulated impairment 1oss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its jointy controlied entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the jointly contrelled entities. Unreafised losses are also efiminated on the same basis but only to the extent of the costs that can be
recovered, and the balance that provides evidence of reduction in net reafisable value or an impairment of the asset transferred are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Goodwiil
Goodwillinegative goodwill) represents the excess/deficit) of cost of acquisition plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition over the
Group's share of the fair value of identifiable assets, fiabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquires

Goodwill on acquisition: of subsidiaries is recognised as an asset while negative goodwill is credited to the income statement in the year of
acquisition Goodwill on acqulsition of associates and jointly controlled entities is included as part of cost of investments in associates and
jointly controiled entities and negative goodwill is credited to income staterment in the year of acquisition

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impalrment test is periormed
annually Goodwill is aiso tested for impairment when indication of impairment exists Impairment Iosses recognised are not reversed in
subsequent periods
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5

Currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Finanicial statements of subsidiaries, associates and iointly controlled entigies are prepared using the functional currency ie. the currency of
the primary aconomic environment in which the entity operates The Group's and the Company's financial statements are presented In
Ringgit Malaysia (RM)

{b) Transactlons and balances ‘

(c)

Foralgn currency transactions and manetary items are accounted for at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates and at the
halance sheet date, respectively Exchange diffarences arising from he transletion and settlermnent of forelgn currency monetary items are
included in the income statement.

Translation of foreign currency financlal statements

For cansolidation purposes, entities” income Statements prepared in forelgn currencies are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at average
exchange rates for the year while their balance sheets, including goodwill and fair value adjustments attributable 1o those entities on
consoiidation, are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at exchange rates ruling at the balance shest date Al resutting translation differences
are taken to reserves Intercompany loans where settlement is neither pianned nor fikely to occur in the foresesable future, are treated as
part of the parent’s net investment Exchange differences arising therefrom are aiso taken directly to reserve On disposal of the foreign
entity or return of investment, the refated cumulative transiation differences are recognised in the income statement as patt of the gain or
loss on disposal or refurn of investment

{d} The principal exchange rates used for each respective unlt of foreign elrrency

year end rates Average rates

2007 2006 2007 2006

RM RM RM RM

Australian gollar 252 249 2.79 279
Chinese renminbi 0.46 0.46 0.46 048
Euro 4 67 463 4.64 454
100 japanese yen 2.82 316 3.0 326
Hong Kong dollar 0.44 048 0.46 048
Pound sterling 6.93 670 6.87 563
New Zealand dotflar 2.65 220 2.43 249
Qatar riyal 0.95 101 0.98 ™M
Singapore dollar 2.26 231 2.30 247
That batt 011 010 0.10 0.09
United States dollar 3.47 349 3.56 373

Property, ptant and equipment

Property, plan and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and accumulated impairment losses. In 1978, valuation
adiustments on Malaysian plantation lend and buildings were incorporated into the financial statements During the implementation of the
previous accounting standard on proparty, plent and equipment, MASE Standard No 15, in 1998, the Group had appied the transitional provisian
which allows the Group to cantinue carrying those land and buildings in the financlal statements on the basis of their previous revaluation Other
than depreciaticn and impairment adjustments, there Is no later vallation recorded on those fand and huildings

Subsequent costs are included in the assat's carrying amount or recognised &5 a separate asset, as approprlate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the jtem widl flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is deracognised All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statemerst during the financial period In which
they are incurred
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6

Property, plant and equipment {continued}

surpiuses arising on revaluation are credited to a revaluation reserve Any deficit arising from ravaluation is charged against the revaluation
reserve to the extent of 2 previous surpius held in the revaluation reserve for the same asset. In all other cases, a decrease in the carrying amount
is charged to the income statement On the disposai of revalued assets, amounts in revaluation reserve relating to those assets are transferred 10
retained profits.

Freehold fand is nat depreciated Assets in the course of censtruction are shown as capital work in progress Depreciation on these assets
commences when they are ready for use. Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight iine basis to write down the cost or
valuation of each asset 1o their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual depreciation rates are:

Buildings 2%t0 5%
Plant and machinery 4% 1033 1/3%
vehicies, equipment and fbdures 5% 1033 1/3%

The assets’ residual vaiues and useful lives are reviewed, end adjusted if appropriate, annuatly.
Interest incurred on external borrowings related to assets under construction is capitalised until the assets are ready for their intended use

Investment property

invesiment properties are land and buildings held for rental income andvor capital appreciation which are not suhstantially occupied for use by, or
in the operations of the Group. Property that is being constrizcted for future use as investment property is classified under property, plant and
equipmert until construction is completed, at which time the property becomes irvestment property

invesiment properties are stated at cost less accumuiated depreciation and accumutated impairment losses Freehold fand is not depreciated and
buildings are deprecizted on a straight-ine basis to write down the cost of each building to their residuai values over their estimated usefui fives
The principal annual depreciation rates are between 2% and 5%

The residuat vallies and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, annually

Blological assets )
New planting expenditure incurred on land clearing and upkeep of trees to maturity is capitalised t cost as hiological assets and Is not armortised
Replanting expenditure is charged to the income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred

However, the capitalised costs will be amortised to the income statement if the land on which the trees are planted is on a lease term The
amortisation is on a straight-fine hasis over the economic useful lives of the trees commiencing Lpon maturity of the rees of the fast planting
cycle

Land held for praperty development

Land held for property development consists of cost of land on which ne significant develapment work has been undertaken or where
deveiopment activities are not expected o be completed within the nomal operating cycle Land held for property development is classified as
non-current asset and carried at cost less accurmulated Impairment iosses, if any

tard held for propery development is transferred to property development costs under current assets when development activities have
commenced and are expected to be completed within the narmal operating cycle

investments

The Company's investments in subsidiaries and associates are shown at cost less accumulated impairment losses Quoted and unguoted
investments and marketable securities are stated at cost (adjusted for amortisation of premium or accretion of discaunis to maturity, where
eppropriate) less accumutated impairment losses  Cost directly atiributable to an acquisition, is Includad as part of the cost of investment

Market value is calculated by reference to quoted selling prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date.



SIME DARAY BERHAD

Company No.

41759 M

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

11

12

13

14

Intanglible assets
Research expenditure relating to agricuitural studies is charged to the income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred

Tradernarks with indefinita usefus livas are capitalised at cost and subject to annual impairment review. Development costs and expenditure on
acquired rights and trademarks with a finite useful life are capitatised at cost and amortised using the straight line basis aver their contractua
periods or estimated useful lives, whichever is shortar

The principal annual amortisation rates are!

Developmert costs 20%
Assets usage rights 5%
Trademarks 5%

Intangibie assets are also tested for impairment when indication of impairment exists

Prepald lease rentals

payment for rights to use land and buiidings over a predetermined period is classified as prepaid lease rentals and is stated at cost less amount
amortised and accumulated impairment losses. in 1978, valuation adjustrents on Malaysian plantation land were Incorporated into the financial
statements The Group has applied the transitional provision in FRS 117 - Leases which allows the wnamortised carrying amounts of previgusly
revelued land 1o be retsingd as surrogated carrying amounts of the prepaid jease rentals. On disposal or at the end of the iease of revalued
prepaid lease rentals, amounis in revaluation reserve relating to those assets are transferred to retained profits

the prepaid lease rantals are amortised on a straight-fine basis over the lease period ranging from 30 t0 999 years

Inventories
inventories are stated at the lowar of cost and net realisable value Cost includes, where refevant, an appropriate proportion of overheads The
inventories are determined on a weighted average basis except for the foliowing:

Heavy eguipment, motor vehicles
and compieted development units specific identification basis
Replacement parts first in first out basis

Net realisable valile is the estimate of the selling price in the ardinary course of business, less cost 1o complation and selling expenses

Property development costs

The cost of land under developrment, related development costs common to whale projects and direct building costs less amounts recognised
as expense in the income statement are carried in the balance sheet as property development costs. Revenue and expense recognised in the
income statement is determined by reference to the stage of compietion of the development activity in respect of the development units sold
Any expected loss on development projects, is recognised as an expense immediately

At each balance sheet date, the cumulative revenue recognised and progress bitlings made for each development unit sold are compared
Where the revenue recognised exceeds the billings to the purchaser, the net amount is shown as accrued billings, under trade and other
receivables Where the bilings to purchaser exceed revenue recognised, the net amount is shown as progress billings, under trade and other
payables

Finanhce lease, trade and other receivables
When assets are sold under a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised a5 receivables The difference between the
gross receivables and the present value of the receivables is recognised gs uneamed finance income

Trade ang ather receivabies are carried at anticipated realisable value Specific alowances are made for debts whicl have been identified as bad
or doubtful I acdition, estimates are made for doubtiul debts based on a review of &ll outstanding amounts at year end.



SIME DARBY BERHAD

Company No.

A175% M

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

16

17

18

19

20

21

Construction contracts
Contract costs include the costs attributable to a contract for the nericd from the date of securing the contract to the final compietion of the
contract

When the outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably, the percentags of completion method is used to determine the appropriate amount
of revenue and costs to be recognised in a given period. The percentage of completion Is determined by reference to the proportion of costs
incurred to date to the total estimated costs or the completion of a physical proportion of contract werk to-gate When the cutcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated refiably, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that is probably
recoverable. When it is probable that contract costs will exceed totai contract revenile, the expecied loss Is recognised as an expense
immediately

At each baiance sheet date, the cumulative costs incurred, profits or losses recognised and progress billings made for each contract work are
compared Where costs incurred and recognised profits/llosses) exceed progress billings, the net amount is shown as amount due from
customers on construction contracts, under trade and other receivables. Wheare progress billings exceed Costs incurred and recognised
profits/llosses), the net amount is shown as armount due to cUSIOMErs en construction contracts, under trade and other payables

Non-current assets held for sale

Nor-current assets or groups of assets are classified as *heid for sale’ when all the following criteria are met:
e & decision has been made to sell,

e ihe assets are availahle for sate immediately,

o  the assels are being actively marketed, and

o asalenas been or is expected to be concluded within twelve months of the balance sheet date

immediately before they are classified as held for sale, the measurement of the assets and assoclated Habilities is prought up to date in
accordance with thelr respective accourting policies

Depreciation ceases when an asset is classified as non-current assets held for sale Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of
hook value and falr value less disposal costs

Impalrment of assets .

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired If such indication exists,
impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts Recoverable amount is the higher of net
selfing price and value in use, which is measured by reference to discounted future cash flaws

The impairment loss is charged to the incomne statement unless it reverses a previous revaluation in which case it is charged to the revaluation
resarve. Any subsequent increase in recoverable amount of the assef, other than goodwil, is recognised in the income statement uniess it
reverses ah impairment loss on a revalied asset in which case it is taken to revaiuation reserve.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Group elso tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, intangible
assets not yet avallable for use and goodwill acquired In a business combination for impairment annually

share capltal

Pracesds from ordinary shares issued are accounted for as equity, with the nominal vaili of the shares being separately disclosed as share
capital Costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of shares are accounted for es & deduction from equity

Dividends to shareholders are recognised in equity in the pericd in which they are daclared

Borrowlngs

Loans and borrowings are recognised initiglly at fafr value, net of transaction costs incurred Loans antd borrowings are subseguently stated at

amortised cost, using the effective interest rate methoed

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at cost

16
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23

24

25

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or canstructive cbligation as a result of past events, where itis probable that an
outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and when a refiable estimate of the amount can be made

(a) Maintenance and warranty
The Group recognises the estimated Febitity to repair or replace products still under warranty at the balance sheet date This provision is
calculated hased on past history of the levet of repairs and replacements

(b Property development
Cost provisions for property development are recognised based on cammitments made on enhancements to infrastnucture facilities of
township developments

Cash and cash equivalents

£or the purpose of the cash fiow staterment, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits heid at call with banks, investment in
maney market instruments and demand depasits, net of bank overdrafts In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are included in short term
borrowings

Taxation
Income tax on the profit or foss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of Income taxes payable in
respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacter at the balance sheet date

neferred tax Is provided for, using the “liability method”, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assats and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and unused tax iosses can be Utitised

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liabifty is settied, based on
the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date- Deferred tax is recognised in the income statement,
except when it arises from & transaction which Is recognised directly in reserve, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in
reserve

income recoghition

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable upon dalivery of goods or performance of services, net of
discounts, allowances and indirect taxes  Revenue from property development is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
gevelopment activity in respect of development units sold Revenue from construction contracts is recogrised on the percentage of completion
method by reference to the properion of costs incurred to date 1o the totsl estimated costs or the completion of & physicat proportion of
contract work to-gate Revenue for the Group is stated after eliminating sales within the Group

Other revenues and income earned by the Group are recognised on the following bases:

(a} Finance charges from leasing and hire purchase financing - recognised on an accrual basis over the pericd of the leasing and hire
purchase contracts using the “sum-of-digits™ method

(b} Rental Income - recognised aver the contractual period in accordance with the sibstance of the tenancies
{c) Interest income - recognised as it accrues

{d) Dividend Income - recognised when the right to receive payment is established. In this respect it is Group policy to recognise Interim
dividends from a subsidiary when they are declared and final dividends when they are approved by shareholders i general mesting
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26 Employee benefits

27

28

(a)

()

()

{d)

Short term employee henefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary henefits are accrued in the period in which the associated
services ara rendered by employees of the Group

nefined contribution plans
The Group has varicus defined contribution plans in accordance with local conditions and practices in the countries in which it operates
The Group’s contributions to definad contribution plans are charged 1o the incorme statement in the year in which they relate

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an emplayee's employment Is terminated before the norrmai retirvement date or whengver an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these bensfits The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either terminate the employment of cutrent employees accorting to a detailed formal plan without possibility
of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of a proposal to encourage voluntary redundancy Berefits failing due more
than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value

Equity compensation benefits

Details of the Grougy's Employees' Share Option Scheme are set ot in Note 29 on the financia! statements The fair value of the employee
services Teceived in exchange for the grant of the share option is recognised as an expense in the income statement cver the vesting
pericds of the grant with a corresponding increase In equity. When the share options are exercised, the proceeds received net of any
sransaction costs, are cradited to share capital and share prerium.

Operating ieases
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assels remain with the lessor are accolrted for a5 operating teases Rentals
on operating eases are charged to the income Statement on & straight line basis over the lease term

Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments include investments, receivables, share capital, borrowings, payables, cash and cash equivelents, derivatives and financial
guarantee contracts

{a}

{b)

Financial Instruments recognised on the balance sheet
The recognition method adopted for the financial instruments recognised on the balance sheet Is disclosed in the Individual policy
statements associated with each itemn

Financlal instruments niot recognised on the balance sheet
The Group is a party fo financial instruments which comprise forward foreign exchange copjracts, interest rate and currency swap
contracts and financial guarantee contracts These instruments are not recognised in the financial statements on inception

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group enters inte forward foreign exchange contracts to protect the Group from movements in exchange rates by establishing the rate
at which a forelgn currency asset or liability will be settled Al exchange gains and losses relating to hedge instruments are recognised in
the income Statement in the same period the forward foreign exchange contract is settled

interest rate and currency swap contracts

Interest rate and currency swap, collar and cap contracts are designed to protect the Group from movements in interest rates The notional
principal of these contracts are recorded off balance sheset Any differential to be paid or received on an interest rate and currency swap
contract Is recognised as a componant of interest income or expense over the period of the contract Gains end losses on eatly
tarmination of interest rate and currency swap contracts or on repayment of the borrowing are taken to the income statement

financial guarantee coniracts

Financial guarantee contracts that require the Group to make specific payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specific debtor fails to make payment when due are disclosed as contingent liabilities. These guarantees are recorded in the balance sheet
only whes the outflow of resources has become probable

18



SIME DARBY BERHAD

Compary No.
A175% M

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

2% contingent liabilities
Contingent liabitities are disclosed in the financial statements A contingent liability is & possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by uncertain future events beyond the control of the Graup or a present obligation that Is not recognised because itis
nct probable that an cutfiow of resources will be required to settte the obligation A contingent fiabiity also arises in the extremely rare
circurnstances where there is a Tiahfiity that cannat be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably

30 Segment reporting
Informeation on the Group's different types of businesses and Its operations in different geographical areas that are subject to differing rates of

profitabiiity, opportunities for growth, future prospects and risks are presented in segment information.

Segment revenue, expense, assets and liabilities are those amounts resuiting from operating activities of a segment that are directly attributsble to
the segment and the relevant portion that can be aflocated on a reasonable Dasis to the segment SeEMEent reveni:e, expense, assets and liabilities
are datermined before intragroup balances and intragroup transactions are efiminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent
that such intragroup balances and transactions are between Group companies within a single segment
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For the year ended 36th June 2007

Amounts in RM million unless otherwise stated

Group company
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
{restated)

Reverie 1 20,735.0 20,1621 268.3 7964
Operating expenses 2 (19,768.8) (18,834 5) {162.0) (922
Other operating income 3 1.017.9 2602 9.4 58
Operating profit 1,984.1 1,583 8 115.7 7100
Share of results of jointly controlied entities 1.7 15 -
Share of results of associates 68.3 811 - -
Profit before interest 2,0584.1 1,666.4 115.7 7100
investment and interest income 5 170.3 895 63.7 327
Finance costs (138.4) (121.8} {43.4) (333
Profit before taxation 2,086.0 1,634 1 136.0 7094
Taxation 6 (488.6) {429 9) (44.1) (199 &)
Net profit for the year 1,597.4 1,204 2 89.9 509 8
Aftributabie to!
Ordinary equity hioidars of the Company 1,505.7 11214 B9.9 5098
Minority shareholders 91.7 828 - -
Net profit for the year 1,597.4 1,204.2 89.9 5098

Sen 3en
Earnings per share 7
~ Basic 60.4 461
- Dituted 60.4 A60

The accounting policies set out on pages 8 to 19 and the notes on pages 24 10 92 form an integral part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS
As at 30th June 2007

Amounts in R\ milifon unless otherwise stated

Group Company
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(restated)
NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and eguipment 9 3,880.0 35423 15.5 155
Investmeant properties 10 153.0 846 - -
Biciogical assets 1% 260.9 2587 - -
Land held for property development 12 318.% 2286 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 13 - - 5,973.8 6146 4
Interests in jointly controlled entities 14 7.7 i1 - -
Investment in associates 15 264.1 5452 1.8 18
Investments 16 344.7 3484 1921 1945
Goodwiill on consolidation 17 3.9 30 - -
intangible assets 18 67.9 685 - -
Prepaid tease rentals 19 570.6 6504 - -
Defarred tax assets 20 361.3 364 2 3.8 23
Finance iease receivables 21 - 4541 - -
6,233.0 6,6463 6,187.0 6,360 5
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 22 3,858.3 3,381.3 2.9 25
Property development costs 23 88%.1 787.3 - -
Trade and other receivables 24 34764 32098 16.1 118
Prepayment 109.9 1206 0.5 02
Tax recoverable 69.8 1349 4.8 -
Cash held under Housing Development ACCoUns 26 278.1 2802 - -
Bank balances, deposits and cash 27 4,440.5 2,932.2 290.0 285.7
13,1221 10,8463 314.3 300.2
Non-current assets held for sale 28 200.7 468 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 19,555.8 17,5394 6,501.3 46,6607
EQUITY
Share capital 29 1,261.0 1,2328 1,261.0 1,232 8
Reserves 30 8,869.1 7,572.3 4,170.5 4,386.4
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 10,130.1 88051 54315 56188
Minarity interests 993.3 9908 - -
TOTAL EQUATY 11,123.4 97956 54315 54188
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
l.oans and financing kcd| 1,463.6 20832 1,000.0 1,000.0
Deferred tax iabilities 20 208.2 234.8 - -
1,668.8 23180 1,000.0 1,0600.0
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 33 4,721.5 37946 69.8 401
Provisions 34 187.0 1301 - -
Short term borrowings 3t 1,456.5 1,256 6 - -
Cutrent taxation 213.9 2445 - 1.8
6,584.9 54258 69.8B 419
Lighilities directly sssociated with non-current assels held
for saie 28 178.7 - -~ -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,432.4 7,743 8 1,069.8 1.0419
TOTAL BEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 19,555.8 175394 6,501.3 6,6607
Sen sSen
NET ASSETS PER SHARE 7 402 a57

The accounting policies set out on pages 8 to 19 and the notes on pages 24 to 92 form an integral part of these financial statements
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SIME DARBY BERHAD

Company No.

41759 M

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30th June 2007

Amotnts I RM milllon unless otherwlise stated ‘

Group Company
! Total equity
attributable
to ordinary
equity
' holders of
Share the Minority Total Share Total
capital Reserves Company  Interest Equity capital Reserves Equlty
2007
At st july
As previously stated 1,232.8 7,571.0 8,803.8 990.2 9,794.0 1,232.8  4,3860  5,618.8
FRS adiustments (see note 45} - .13 1.3 0.3 1.6 - - -
As restated 1.232.8 7,572.3 88051 990.5 9,795.6 1,232.8 4,3860 5,618.8
Currency translation differences
arising from translation of .
- subsidiaries - 1758.7 175.7 (2.4) i73.3 - - -
- a5s0ciates - (4.1 a.1n - (4.1 - - -
share of reserves of assoclates - ' 0.6 0.6 - 0.6 - - -
Effect of dilution of interest in an :
associate - ; 1.3 1.3 - 1.3 - - -
Net gains/(losses) not recognised in :
income statement - 173.5 173,56 (2.4} 171.1 - - -
Net profit for the year ~  1,508.7 1,505.7 91.7 1,597.4 - 89.9 8%.9
Totat income for the year - 1,679.2 1,679.2 9.3 1,768.5 - 89.9 89.9
Acguisition of additional interest :
from minority sharehalders - {77.0} 77.0) (19.4) {36.4) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - {5.3) {5.3} - - -
Liquidation of a subsldiary - P - (9.8) (9.8) - - -
issue of shares 28.2 2742 302.4 9.5 311.9 8.2 274.2 302.4
Dividends - {579.6) (579.6} {61.5) (641.1) - (579.6) (579.6}
At 30th Juna 1.261.0 8,869.1 10, 130.1 993.3 11,123.4 1,261.0 4,170.5 54315
2006 ‘
At st July ¢
As previously stated 1,1951 46,8100 8,005 ! 1,179 1 9,184 2 1,1951 39803 51754
FRS adjustments - { 0.5 0.5 - 0.5 - - -
As restated 1,1951 6,?19 5 BO05 & 1,179 % 91847 1,195 1 3.98G3 51754
Currency trenslation differences :
arising from translation of .
- subsidiaries - (75.0} 750 05 (755 - - -
- associates - 03 01 - 01 - - -
Share of reserves of associates - 09 0% - {09 - - -
Effect of dilution of interestin :
associates - 41 41 - 41 - - -
Goodwill written off - (56.6) (56.6) - {56.6 - - -
Net losses not recognised in income
staternent - (128 3) (1283 o5 (1288 - - -
Net profit for the year - 1,124 14,1214 B2.8 1,204.2 - 509.8 509.8
Totat income for the year - 9931 9931 823 1075 4 - 5098 509.8
Acquisition of additiona interest
frorm minority shareholders - (127 2) {127 &) (200 4) (327.6) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - 179 179 - - -
Disposal of subsidlaries - - - {138 {13 8} - - -
Issue of shares 377 §82 4 4201 14 4215 377 3824 4201
Dividends - (486.5) (486.5} 760} (562.5) - (486.5) {486.5}
At 30th June 1,2328 7,$72 3 8,805 1 9oG5 27956 1,232 8 4,386 0 56188

v
3

i

An analysis of the movements In each category within re:sewes is set out In Note 30.

]
The accounting pollcles set out on pages & to 19 and thejnotes on pages 24 to 62 form an integral part of these financlal statements
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SIME DARBY BERHAD

Company No.
41759 M

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30th june 2007

Amounts n RM miliion unless otherwise stated

Group Company
Note 2007 2004 2007 2006
{restated)
Profit after taxation 1,597.4 1,204 2 89.9 509.8
Adjustments for
Dividends from subsidiaries and associates - - {187.1} {716.6)
Unusual iterns 4 {567.0} 78 (0.9} -
Share of profits less losses of jointly controlled entities and assoclates (70.0) {82.6) - -
Investment income (32.6) {108) {12.2) 37
Interest income (137.7) {787 {51.5) 290)
Finance costs 138.4 1218 43.4 333
Depreciation and amortisation 402.7 3663 5.4 51
Arnorisation of prepaid iease rentals 12.6 98 - -
Taxation 488.6 4299 46.1 1896
Other non-cash items 36 96.1 (25.0) (1.3 0ne
1,928.5 1,9427 (68.5) {0.6)

Changes in working capital;
Inventories (456.2) (153 4) (0.4} o)
Property developmeant costs (59.7} 438 - -
Trade and cther receivabies and prepaymeants {732.0) {445.3) (3.4) 81
Cash held under Housing Developrent Accounts 21 1295 - -
Trade and other payables and provisions 1,491.3 303 29.7 08
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 2,134.0 1,547 & {42.6) 177
Tax paid {472.2) {455.2) {4.2} (55
Divicends from subsidiaries - - 133.0 5101
Dividends from assoclates 21.7 67.4 4.1 8.1
Net cash Inflow from operating actlvities 1,683.5 1,159 8 90.3 530.4
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 37 365.6 {581 5) 234.6 (566.6)
Net cash (outfiow)/inflow from financing activities 3g {507.4) 1946 {320.6) 159.4
Net Increase in cash and cash eguivalents 1,541.7 7729 4.3 1232
Foreign exchange differences {39.3) 59 - -
Cash and cash equivaients at beginning of the year 2,920.4 2,153 4 285.7 1625
cash and tash eguivalents at end of the year 39 4,422.8 29204 290.0 2857

The accounting palicies set out on pages 8 to 19 and the notes on pages 24 to 2 form an integral part of thess financial statements.
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SIME DARBY BERHAD

Company No.
41759 M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30THJUNE 2007

Amounts in RM milllion unless otherwise stated

INCOME STATEMENTS

1 REVENUE

Revenue for the Group represents sales of goods, performance of services, rental income, income from construction contracts and property
davelopment earned outside the Group, net of discounts, allowances and indirect taxes

Revenue for the Company represents salas of goods, performance of senvices and income from shares held in subsidiaries and associates

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Analysls of revenue
Sales of goods 15,463.2 15,390.8 34.8 261
Performance of services 2,914.6 29794 46.4 537
Rental income 24.5 16.3 - -
Construction contracts 1,671.8 1,137 9 - -
Property development 660.9 6377 - -
Income from shares held in subsidiaries
- Quoted - - 49.8 434
- Unquoted - - ‘132.5 665 1
incoma from shares heid in associates
- Unguoted - - 4.8 8.1
20,7350 20,162 1 268.3 7964
2 OPERATING EXPENSES
Group Campany
2007 2006 2007 2008
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress (42.0) (20.1) - -
Finished goods and work in progress purchased 12,3553 12,6413 253 16 4
Raw materials and consurnables used 1,618.6 15060 2.9 30
Employee benefits 1,753.5 14722 52.9 362
Depreciation
- property, plant and equipment 395.6 3609 5.1 5.1
- Investment properties 1.8 i1 - -
- biological assets 1.0 04 - -
Amortisation of prepaid lease rentais 12.6 98 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 4.3 39 - -
Construction contract costs 1.574.5 9159 - -
Property development costs 406.2 453.4 - -
Other operating expenses 1,687.4 1,683 7 75.8 318
19,768.8 18,838.5 162.0 922
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Employee benefits
Employee bengfits included in Income statement 1,753.5 14722 52.9 382
Employee benefits inciuded in construction contracts 70.5 45,1 - -
1,824.0 1,617.3 52.9 36.2
Number of persons employed, at the end of the year 30,050 28,770 399 321
Employee benefits include:
Defined contribution plans 111.0 950 4.7 a2
Termination benefits 1.2 3.8 - -
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Company No.
41759 M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation included in income staternent 395.6 3409 5.1 51
Depreciation included in construction contracts 7.7 45 - -
403.3 3654 5.1 51
Group Company
2007 2006 2067 2006
Other operating expenses Include:
Auditors’ remuneration
Fees for statutory audits
- current year 10.4 g7 0.4 04
- under provision in prior year 0.1 01 - -
Fees for other services 33 4.3 0.2 21
Directors’ remunaration
- fees 1.4 12 1.3 1.0
- gther emolurments 2.0 13 2.0 13
Hire of plant and machinery 8.3 129 0.5 04
Operating lease payments for fand and buildings to
- subsktdiaries - - 4.6 39
- companies external to the Group 135.7 1209 0.1 0.1
Renlanting expendituse 12.% 165 - -
Research expenditure 5.0 56 - -
Allowance for doubtiui debts 411 559 - -
Foreign currencies exchange 108s 41.6 187 0.5 i3
Allowance for lpan to subsidiaries doubtfu! of recovery - - 0.3 01
l.oss on disposal of
- machinary, equipment and vehicles 4.7 - - -
- subsidiaries 1.7 B6 - -
- associates - 40 - -
Impairment of
- property, plant and equipment 25.9 106 - -
- associate 17.0 209 - -
- investmants 0.2 10 - -
~ goodwill 3.0 - = -
- prepaid lease rentals 3.5 - - -
Property, plant end eguipment written off 12.9 6.7 - -

The estimated monetary value of benefits provided to Directors of the Company during the year by way of usage of the Group's and Company's
assets and other benefits amounted to RMO.1 million {2006 : RMO 2 million)

3 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Group company
2007 2006 2007 2006

Cther operating Income inciudes:
Forelgn currencies exchange gain 68.1 213 - 01
Rental income from land and buildings 31.2 353 - -
Surpius on disposal of

- machinery, equipment and vehicies 16.5 28.0 0.8 03

- properties 85.4 12 - -

- investment properties 3.9 129 - -

- subsidiaries 72.3 7.7 - -

- associates 4334 53 - -

- investments 1.6 30 0.9 -

- prepaid lease rentals 3.4 11 - .
Reversal of impairment of

- property, plant and equipment 24.7 38 - -

- investments 0.5 - - -
Writeback of allowance for doubtiul debts 246.8 60.2 - -
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company No.

41759 M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued))

UNUSUAL ITEMS

The following incorne and allowances arg classified as unusual items for the purpose of disciosure of segment results in Note 42

Grotup company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Net surplus/deficit) on disposal of
- properties 85.4 12 - -
- investment properiies 3.9 129 - -
- subsidiaries 70.6 09N - -
- @ssnciates 433.4 13 - -
- investments 1.6 30 0.9 -
- prepaid lease rentals 3.6 11 - -
Impairmerit of
- property, plant and equipment (25.9) {10.6) - -
- associates (17.0) {209 - -
- investments (0.2} (10 - -
- goodwill (3.0 - - -
- prepaid iease rentals (3.5) - - -
Reversal of impairment of
- property, plant and equipment 24.7 38 - -
- investments 0.5 - - -
Provision for repreanisation expenses and ofhers (7.1} 23 - -
567.0 7.8 0.9 -
INVESTMENT AND INTEREST INCOME
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Incomne from marketable securities - 07 - -
Income from shares {gross):
- Quoted cutside Malaysia 0.2 01 0.2 04
- Unguoted 324 10.¢ 2.0 36
Total investment income 32.6 108 12.2 37
Interest income from:
- Subsidiaries - - 23.4 141
- Banks and other financlal institutions 137.7 787 281 149
Total interest income 137.7 78.7 51.5 29.0
Total investrrient and interest income 170.3 89.5 63.7 327
TAXATION
Group company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Current taxation;
in respect of current year:
- Malaysian income tax 206.8 2060 47.7 199.4
- Foreign income tax 224.1 2337 0.7 12
in respect of prior year:
- Malaysian income tax (7.5) {4.6) (0.8} -
- Foreign income tax 0.7 @0 - -
Deferred faxation:
Origination and reversal of ternporary differences (30.1) 145 (1.5} (12
Changes in tax rates and exemption of Malaysian Real Property Gains Tax 2.7 - - -
Writedown/reversal of write down 1.9 {107} - -
488.6 4299 46.1 199.6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6

TAXATION {continued)

Tax recohciliation

The main factors that resuited in the tax expense being different from the applicable tax are analysed as foliows:

Group company
2007 2006 2067 2006
profit before taxation 2,086.0 1,634 1 136.0 7094
1ess
Share of results of jointly controlled entities 17 15 - -
Share of results of associates 68.3 B1.1 - -
Profit before taxation before equity accounting 2,016.0 1,581.5 136.0 705 4
Apolicable tax ' 483.5 4363 367 1986
withholding tax on foreign income 7.4 34 0.7 12
Effect of iIncome not subject to tax
- surplus on disposal of associates {77.6) 04 - -
~ gthars {117.3) {812 (2.2) 4.y
Effect of expenses not deductibie for tax purposes 41.7 748 11.9 37
Efiect of utilisation of previously unrecognised tax kosses and unabsorbed
capital allowances (6.1 (16 - -
Under/(over) provision in prior years 83.2 (138 {0.8) -
Daferred tax assets not recognised in respect of current year's tax losses and
unabsorbed capital allowances 49.3 365 - -
Changes in tax rates and exemption of Mataysian Real Property Gains Tax 2.7 - - -
Others 21.8 {24.3} {0.2) 02
Tax expense for the year 488.6 429.9 46.1 1596
Aoplicable tax rate (%), ie applicable tax over profit before taxation before equity
Accolnting 24.0 281 27.0 280
Effective tax rate {54, e tax expense fof the year over profit before taxation
hefore equity accounting 24.2 277 33.9 281

The applicable tax of the Company is the product of the profit before taxation before equity accounting multiplied by the domestic tax rate of the

company The applicable tax of the Group is derived from the consolidation of all Group companies’ applicall

domestic tax rates

e tax hased on their respective

The decrease in the Company's applicable tax rate was tue to the reduction in the Malaysian statutory income tax rate from 28% to 27% The

decrease in the Group's applicable tax rate was mainly due to the reduction in the Malaysian st

atutory income fax rate, the reduction in the

Singapore statutory income tax rate from 20% to 18% and the higher propertion of income derived from Singapore. The higher income from

Singapore was mainly due to the surplus on disposel of an associate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

7

EARNINGS AND NET ASSETS PER SHARE - GROUP
(a) Baslc earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is computed as follows:

2007 2006
Earnings 1,506.7 1,121.4
Weighted average number of shares in issue {million) 2,491.5 2,431 4
Basic earnings per share (sen per share) 60.4 46,1
{b) Diluted earnings per share
The diluted eamings per share is comiputed as foliows: .
2007 2006
Earnings 1,508.7 11,1214
Difutive effects of cuistanding employees’ share options
of an associate - {02
Dilutive effects of outstanding warrants of a subsidiary
not held by the Group - 0.3
Diluted earnings 1.505.7 1,120.9
Million
Weighted average number of shares i issug 2,491.5 2,431 4
Adjustment for outstanding employees’ share options
issued by the Company 1.5 7.6
Adiusted weighted average nurnber of shares 2,493.0 24390
Ciluted earnings per share (5en per share) 60.4 46.0

{c) Net assets per share

The net assets per share is calculated by dividing the Group's net assets of RM10,130 1 million (2006 © RMB,BO51 million) by the 2,522.0
milfion (2006 ; 2,465 5 million) number of shares of the Company in issue at year end.

DIVIDENDS
2007 2006

Finai dividend for the year ended 30th June 2006:
Paid on t5th December 2006
- 1578 sen gross per share less Malaysian tax at 27% and 50 sen per share Malaysian tax exempt and 4 0sen
per share Jess Singapore tax at 20% (2006 : 16 0 sen per share less Mataysian tax at 28%, and 5 0 sen per
share Malaysian tax exempt) AB7.8 3979

Interim dividend for the year ended 30th June 2007
Paid on 18th May 2007
- 5. sen gross per share jess Malaysian tax at 27% (2004 : 5 0 sen gross per share less
Malaysian [ax at 28%) 91.8 88.6

579.6 48685

On 28th August 2007, a second interim gross dividend in respect of the year ended 30th June 2007 of 25 2 sen per share, comprising 137 sen per
share iess Malaysian tax at 27%, 50 sen per share Malaysian tax exempt and 6 5 sen per share less Singapore tax at 18% has been declared
These financial statements do not reflect this second interim dividend which will be accounted for in the year ending 30th June 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BALANCE SHEET

9  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Vehicles,
equipment Capltal

Group Freehold teasehold Plant and and workin
2007 land land Bulldings machinery fixtures progress Total
Met book value
Al 1t July

As previously stated 1,028.3 744.3 1,293.9 820.5 663.7 104.9 4,655.6

FRS adjustments {see Nute 45) (274.8) (7443} {94.2) - - - {1,113.3)

As restated 753.5 - 1,199.7 820.5 663.7 104.9 3,542.3
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Disposal of subsidiaries - - {8.6) (4.9) (2.8} - {16.3}
Additions 3.2 - 107.6 141.2 533.6 188.4 974.0
Disposals (3.2} - {1.8) {11.6) {218.9) - {235.5)
Write offs - - {9.5} {1.0) (2.4) - (12.9)
Impairment losses - - {11.8} {12.1) (1.9) {0.1} (25.9)
Rreversal of impairment losses 0.3 - 24.3 0.1 - - 24.7
Transfer to investment properties - - - - - {15.2) {15.2)
Transfer to land held for property devetopment {35.1) - - - - - {35.1)
Transfer to prepaid lease rentals - - - - - {4.3) (4.3}
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale - - {12.5) {7.4) (3.0} - (22.9)
Reclassification - - (13.8) (12.6) 79.9 (53.5) -
nepreciation - - {63.8) (119.6) {21%.9) - {403.3)
Exchange differences 10.6 - 16.3 36.7 38.5 8.1 110.2
AL 30t lune 729.3 - 1,226 829.3 867.0 228.3 3,880.0
Cost 479.2 - 1,692.1 1,887.9 1,698.0 235.1 5,992.3
Valuzation 253.1 - 148.1 - - - 393.2
Accumuliated cepreciation - - (5726}  {1,039.8) (828.5) -~ {2,440.9)
Accumulated impairment iosses (3.0 - {33.5) (18.8) {2.5) (6.8) {64.6)
Net book value &t end of year 729.3 - 11,2261 829.3 867.0 228.3 3,880.0
2006
Net hook value
Af st luly

As previously stated 1,0347 684.3 1,1507 8253 5236 1382 4,396 8

FRS adjustments {261.2) {684.3) {97.5) - - o {1,042.0)

As restated 7735 - 10932 8253 5236 1382 3,353 8
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 203 288 28 42 B4 1
Disposal of subsidiaries (5.0 - {127 (CA)] 7 32 317
Additions 59 - 876 895 4397 106.1 6988
Dispnsals {2 8) - {203) B89 (95 9) (1.4) {129 5)
Write offs - - - {3.5) (3.2) - 67
impairment losses 33 - @4 a8 0% n {106
Reversal of impairment lossas - - - 38 - - 38
Transfer from prepaid lease rentals - - - - - 33 33
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale {129 - - - - - (129
Reclassification 18 - 1086 332 21 (1457} -
Depreclation - - 61 Y (110.2 {194 1) - (365 4}
Exchange differences {3.7) - (12.5) 5.4 (3.5) 35 {16.7}
At30th june 7535 - 11997 820.5 6637 1049 35423
Cost 503.4 - 1,6837 1,8632 1,388 7 1108 55498
Valuation 2531 - 1401 - - - 3932
Accurnulated depreciation - - {569 1) {1,036 5) (724.5) - {2,330 1)
Accumulated impairment losses 3.0 — (55.0) {6.2} 0.5) (5.9) 70.6)
net book value atend of year 7835 - 1,997 820.5 &637 1049 35423

Included in capital work in progress incursed during the year Is interast expensa amointing to RM1.9 million {2006: RM3 6 million)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

g

10

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {continued)

Property, plant and equipment of certaln subsidiaries with net book value of RM93 6 millign {2006 : RM176 9 mitlion) were charged to banks as
security for barrowings (see Note 31}

The land and buildings stated at valuation were valued in 1978 based on valuations by professional firms of surveyors and valuers. The valuations
were performed 00 a continuing agricultural use basis No disclosure is made on the carnrying amount of these land and buildings using the
wistorical cost canvention cue to absence of the historical records and as permitted by the previous accounting standard on property, plant and
equipment, FRS 116, in 2000

Company

vehicles, equipment and fixtures 2007 2006
Net book value

At st iuly 15.5 136
Additions 55 89
Disposals {0.4) (1.3)
Depreciation {5.1) {51)
At 30th Juna 15.5 155
Cost ‘ 38.1 359
Accumulated depreciation {22.6) (20 4

Net book valle at end of year 15.5 18.5

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP

2007 Fresholdland  Buildings Total
Net book value

At 1st fuly, as restated (see Note 45) 90.8 93.8 184.6
Additions - 1.2 1.2
Disposals (1.3 (28.2) {39.5)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 15.2 15.2
Transfer to nor-current assets held for sale {z.0) - (2.0}
Depreciation - {1.8) {1.8)
Exchange differences 0.2 (4.9} (4.7
A4 30th june 77.7 75.3 153.0
Cost 90.4 85.8 176.2
Accumulated depreciation - {8.5) {8.5}
Accumulated impairment losses (12.7) {2.0) {14.7)
Net book value at end of year 77.7 75.3 153.0
2006

Net book value

At 1stjuly, as restated 942 97 1 1913
Additions 16 0.3 22
Disposals (53) (2.8 (8.1
Depreciation - g (1.1)
Exchange differences - 0.3 0.3
AbacthJune 90.8 938 184.6
Cost 1039 1114 2153
Accumulated depreciation - (129 (129
Accumulated impalrment losses (13.1) (4.7) {17.8}
Net book value at end of year 908 938 1846

The falr value of investment properties as at 30th iune 2007 was RM367 0 million The falr value was arrived at after taking into consideration
the valuation performed in 2007 by exiernal professianal firms of surveyors and veluers The valustion was performed using comparable and
investment hasis based on current prices in an active market for all properties
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ~ GROUP {continued)

Rental income generated from and dirsct operating expenses incurred an investment properties are as foliows:

2007 2006
Rental income
Direct aperating expenses incurred on 24.5 16.3
- income generating properties (6.2) (38
- non-lncome generating propertias - {0.2)
11 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - GROUP
2007 2006
Net book value
At 15t July, as restated (see Note 45) 2557 2483
Additions 7.4 43
Amortisation {1.0) 0.4
gxchange differences (1.2} 35
At 30th June 260.9 255.7

Biological assets represent oil palm trees The harvested fruits which were unsold as at the balance sheet date are shown as produce stocks
under inventories

12 LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT - GROUP

2007 2006
AL st iuly
As previcusly stated 262.5 3096
FRS adfjustments (see Note 45) (33.9) -
As restated 228.6 e
Additions 3.3 224
Transfer from property, ptant and equipment 35.1 -
Transfer fram prepaid iease rentals 62.7 -
Transfer to property development costs - (67 5}
Transfer to non-current assets heid for sale (0.2} (33 9%
Write down {10.3) -
Exchanpe differences (D.3) 2.0)
At 30th june 318.9 2286
The 1and held for property development is analysed as foliows:

2007 2004

Freehold 1and at cost 6414 283
tong feasehold iand at cost 254.8 2003
At 30th fune 318.9 2284
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

2007 2006
Carrying Market Carrying Market
amolnt value amount Value
Shares at cost
Quotad in Malaysia 646.3 2,044.6 6443 11410
Unguoted 3,057.2 2,459 2
3,703.5 3,1055
Amounts owing by subsidiaries 2,927.9 3,275.8
Allowance for doubtful debts (67.8) {67 5)
Armounts owing to subsidiaries (589.8} {167 4)
5,973.8 6,146 4

The arouints owing by/to subsidiaries are tnsecured and not expected 0 be recalied within the next twelve months Except for RM371 1 milllion
(2006 © RM503 2 million) owing by subsidiaries which bear interest at rates ranging from 4 0% to 12.0% per annum {2006: 3 1% to 12 0% per

annum), all outstanding balances are interest free

The Group's equity interest in the subsidiaries, their respective principal activities and countries of incorporation are shown in Note 47

14 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES - GROUP

The Group's interest in the assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses of jointly controlled entities was as foliows:

2007 2006

Curtent assets 181.4 1776
Current fiabiliges (173.9) {176 5}

Nat assets 7.7 1.1

Revenue 185.3 159.6
Expenses (184.0) (158 1)
Interest income 0.4 e

17 15

Share of capital commitments

Share of contingent liabilities

The Group's interest in the jointly controlied entities, their respective principal activities and countries of incorporation are shown in Note 47

15 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

Quoted shares outside Malaysia - 507.0 - -
Unguoted shares 236.0 3933 1.8 18
share of post acquisition raserves A7.4 260 - -
Goodwill wiitten off - (336.4) - -
Impaimant losses (19.3) (44.7) - -
264.1 5452 1.8 18

Market value of quoted associates - 690.4 - -

share of contingent liabilities
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45 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES {continued)

supplementary information of the equity accounted associates’ financials :

Group
2007 2006
Resuits
Revenue 3,389.5 37406
Net profit for the year 198.6 263.8
Share of resulis of associates 68.3 81.1
Effect of dilution of interest in associates {0.5) 0.5
Movements in reserves
Share premium 6.2 124
Capital reserves {1.2) -
Exchange reserves 3.3 3.2
share of moverients in reserves of associates 0.6 0.9
Effect of diiution of interest in associates 1.8 3.6
Financial position
Total assets 3,394.2 4,137 2
Total liabilities {2,651.3) (2,346.4)
Net assets 742.9 1,790.8
share of net assets of associates 282.5 5859
Googwill 0.9 -
impairment losses {19.3) {447}
2641 545.2

The Group's equity Interest in the associates, their respective principal activities and countries of incorporation are shown in Note 47
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16

17

INVESTMENTS
Group Campany
2007 2004 2007 2006
At cost
Quioted
in Malaysia 6.6 12.6 0.1 6.1
Qutside Malaysla 0.5 05 0.4 0.4
Unguoted shares
in Malaysia 308.3 3078 191.6 1914
Outside Malaysia 34.7 370 - -
350.1 3579 192.1 1981
Accumulated impalrment losses
Quoted shares in Malaysia (5.4} (9.5) - {3.6)
Carrying amount 344.7 3484 192.1 1945
2007 2006
Carrying Market Carrying Market
amotnt value armount vale
Group
Quoted shares
In Mataysia 1.2 1.2 a 40
Cutside Malaysia 0.5 6.2 0.5 24
1.7 7.4 36 6.%
Unguoted shares
in Malaysia 308.3 3078
Quiside Malaysia 34.7 370
344.7 3484
Company ‘
Quoted shares
it Malaysia 0.1 0.1 25 313
Qutside Malaysia 0.4 5.7 0.4 2.1
0.5 5.8 29 5.4
Unquoted shares in Malaysla 191.6 191.6
192.1 - 194.5
GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION —~ GROUP
Net book vaiue 2007 2006
At st July 3.0 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary 3.5 30
Impalment losses (3.0 -
Exchange differences 64 -
At 30th June 39 30
Cost &.9 30
Accumizdated impairment [0sses (3.0) -
Net book value 3.9 30
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

Internally
generated
Assets Development
2007 Trademarks _usage rights Total costs Total
Net book value
At st July 63.0 2.6 685.6 2.9 68.5
Additions
- internal development - - - 5.0 5.0
Amortisation (1.6) {0.2} (1.8} (2.5) {4.3)
Exchange differences (1.7) 0.4 (1.3} - {1.3)
At 30th Jung 59.7 2.8 £2.5 5.4 67.9
Cost 66.8 39 707 10.8 81.5
Accumulated amortisation {7.1) (1.1 (8.2) (5.4) {13.6)
Net book value at end of year 59,7 2.8 62,5 5.4 67.9
2006
Net book value
AL 18t July 65.5 27 682 44 726
Adgitions
- intermal development, w - - 05 05
Amortisation (17} 02 {19 20 39
Exchenge differences {0.8) 0.3 {0.7) - {.7)
At 30th June 63.0 2.6 65.6 2.9 68.5
Cost &85 34 79 58 777
Accurmislated amortisation (5.5 {0.8) (6.3) (2.9} (9.2)
Net book value at end of year 63.0 2.6 65.6 29 68.5

Trademarks with net book value of RM35 3 millior: {2006 : RM35 3 million) were acquired for an indefinite period These trademarks are not
amortised as it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows Indefinitely These trademarks are tested for impairment annually and whenever
indication of impairment exists No impairment indicators existed during the financial year and hence there was no impairment chargea.
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19 PREPAID LEASE RENTALS - GROUP

The prepaid lease rentals are subject to the following maturity perlods :

2007 2006
Non Current
Later than 1 year 570.6 6504
Current
Not later than 1 year, included in prepayment under clrrent assets 11.3 95

581.9 &601
The prepaid lease rentals were payments for rights to use the following
Short
Long teasehold

2007 leasehold land land Bulldings Total
Net book value
At 1st July, as restated (see Note 45) 436.0 223.7 0.4 660.1
Additions 0.2 2.7 - 2.9
Disposals (0.2} - - {0.2)
Impairment losses - (3.5) - (3.5}
Transfar from property, plant and equipment 43 - - 4.3
Transfer to land held for property developmaent (62.7} - - (62.7)
Reciassification {36.7) 36.7 - -
Amortisation {4.2) (8.4) - (12.6)
Exchange differences (2.2} (4.2} - {6.4)
At 30th June 334.5 247.0 0.4 581.9
2006
Net book value
At st July, as restated 3977 2053 04 034
Acquisition of subsidiaries 485 - - 485
Disposal of subsidiaries (©4) (7 4) - 5.8)
Additions 03 326 - 329
Disposals - 0.4 - (04
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (33 - - 33
Reclassification 1.0 10 - -
Amortisation &2 36 - 98
Exchange differences 0.4 (1.8) - {1.4)
At 30th June 436.0 2237 0.4 660.1

Prepaid lease rentals of certain subsidiaries with net book valile of RM346 3 miflion (2006 : nil were charged to banks as security for borrowings

{see Note 31)

included in the prepaid lease rentzls far the long leasehald lend and the short ipasehold land were revaluad rentals of RM42 1 million and RM5 8

raitlion, respectively The revaluation was carvled ot in 1978
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20 DEFERRED TAX

The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets 3461.3 3642 3.8 23
Deferred tax Eabilities {205.2) {234.8) - -
156.1 1294 3.8 23
Tax losses for which the tax effects hava not been recognised in the financial
statements 773.8 7285 - w

The components and movernents of deferred tax liabitities and assets during the year comprised the following:

Group
provisions Tax
and losses and
allowance for Froperty, unabsorbed
doubtfut Property  plant and capital
2007 debts development equipment allowance Others Total
AL 15t July
As previously stated 121.8 114.5 {151.0} 19.9 249 1301
FRS adiustment (see note 45) - - - - {0.7) {0.7)
As restated 121.8 114.5 (151.0) 19.9 242 129.4
Credited/(charged) o income statement
- grigination and reversat of temporary
differences 25.7 (5.9 (3.5} 33.7 (19.9) 30.1
- changes in tax rates and exemption of
Malaysian Real Property Gains Tax (2.2} (9.9) 12.2 (0.3) {2.5) 2.7)
- write down/reversal of write down 0.3 {0.2} {5.6) 34 0.2 (1.9}
Disposal of subsidiaries {3.4) - - - 0.1 (3.3}
Transfer to noh-custent assets held for
sale (0.2} - - - - {0.2)
Exchange differences 2.6 0.2 @.4) (0.6) 6.9 4.7
At 30th June 144.6 98.7 (152.3) 56.1 9.0 156.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Tax lossas
and
Provisions and Property,  unabsorbed
allowance for Property plant and capital
2006 doubtful debts  development  eguipment allowance Cthars Total
AL 1st July
As previously stated 1211 1227 (164 4) 277 279 1350
FRS adjustrent - - - - 0.2) 0.2)
As restated 1211 1227 (164.4} 277 277 134.8
Credited/(charged) 1o income statement
- arigination and reversal of temporary
differences 31 (81) 95 (12 4) {6.6) {14.5}
- write down/revessal of write down 05 0.1 21 25 87 107
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - o7 - - 7
Disposal of sitbsidiaries {18} - 24 - 12 20
Exchange differences {(n - 0.1 2.4 (3.8 29
At 30th june 1218 1145 {151.0) 199 242 129.4
Caompany 2007 2006
Property, plant Property, plant
and equipment Others Total and equipment Others Total
AL 18T Ul ©.2) 2.5 23 (X)) 15 1.1
Credited to income statement
- prigination and reversal of temporary
differences 0.2 1.3 1.5 0.2 1.0 1.2
At 3oth June - 3.8 3.8 0.2 25 23
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21 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

The finence lease receivables are subject to following maturity periods:

2007 2004
Non Current
Later than 1 year and riot 1ater than 5 years - 4282
Later than 5 years . - 25.9
- 4541
Current
Not later than 1 year, included in trade and other receivables under
current assets - 287.8
- 749
The finanice lease receivables are analysed a3 follows:
2007 2006
Gross investments in finance lease:
Not later than 1 year - 3330
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 4740
Later than 5 years - 277
8347
unearned finance income - 74 5)
Attowance for doubtful debts - (18 3)
et investments in finance lease - 7419

The effective interest rates applicable on net investments in finance lease for 30th June 2006 ranged from 4 68% 10 16 70%

22  INVENTORIES

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

Produce stocks 298 241 -~ -
Trading inventories:

- Heavy equipment 1,921.2 1,443 .1 ~- -

- Motor vehicles 1,446.2 1,462.5 - -

- Commipdities and others 221.2 2308 - -

Completed development Lnits 79.2 881 - -

Materials and consumable stores 160.7 133.0 2.9 2.5

3,858.3 3,381.3 2.9 2.5

The carrying value of trading inventories included RM293 6 million (2006 : RM284 7 miltiory) stated at net realisable values
Inventories of a subsidiary with carrying value of RM266 6 miliion {2006 : RM284 7 million) are pledged as security for borrowings (see Note 31)

Inventories where the net realisable value are expected to be below the carrying value are written down. The amount writter: down during the
year was RM69 2 mmillion (2004 : ’Md4 § miltion) for the Group ard RM nil {2006 : nil) for the Company
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23

24

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS - GROUP

2007 2006
pevelopment costs
At st uly 2,092.0 1,980.3
Land acguired 66.0 -
Devetopment costs incurred during the year 463.7 4096
Transfer from land held for property deveiopment - 675
completed development units transferred to inventcries {20.6) (3.3
completed development units and fand soid (367.1) {364 5)
exchange differences (3.0) D4
At 30th June 2,231.0 2,092 0
Costs recognised In income statement
AL 158 July (1,304.7) (1,214 9)
Recognised during the year {406.2) (453 4)
Completed davelopment units and land sold 3671 3645
Excheange differances 1.9 {0.5)
At 30th june (1,341.9) {1,304.7)
At 30th June a489.1 7873
Development costs is analysed as follows:

2007 2006

Freehoid land at cost 310.6 2604
Development costs 1.920.4 1,8314
Costs recognised in income statement {1,341.9) (1,304,7)
At 30th June B89.1 787.3

A property developmeni project of a subsigdiary with net boak value of Ri42 .4 mitlion (2006 : RM&2 8 miliion) is charged to a bank as security for

horrowings (see Note 31)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Trade receivables less allowance for doubtiul debts of RM257.1 million {2006
RM308 4 miltion) for the Group and nil balance (2006 : RMO 1 million)
for the Company 2,155.3 20454 6.6 4.1
Accrued billings 179.4 730 -
Amounts dug feoen customers on construction contracis (see Note 25) 509.8 3725 - e
Amounts due from assoclates 34.7 394 - -
Amounts due from iointly controlled entities - 41 - -
Other recaivables less allowance for doubtiul debts of RM37 2 million (2006 :
RM&.9 million) for the Group and nil balance (2006 : RMO 1 million) for
the Company 559.6 3400 7.7 42
Deposits 37.6 47 4 1.8 15
NEt Investments in finanice lease after deducting unesrned finance income of
nil balance (2006 ; RM38.1 milllior) and allowance for doubtful debts of
nii balance {2006 : RM7.1 million) - 2878 - -
3,476.4 3,209.8 16.1 L

Credit terms of Fade receivables and amounts due from customers ranged from 7 to 365 days {2006 17 to0 180 days)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
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25 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS — GROUP

2007 2006
Aggregate costs incurred 3,158.4 24218
Recogrised profits less losses to date 237.8 2009
3,396.2 26227
Progress billings (3,028.4) (2,293.3)}
367.8 3264
Representad by |
Amounts dug from customers (see Note 24) 509.8 3725
Amounts due to customers (see Note 33} (142.0} 431
367.8 329.4
Retention on contracts 4.5 21
inciuded in construction contract costs incurred during the year were
Depraciation 1.7 45
Hire of plant and machinery 25.1 361
Staff costs 70.5 451

26 CASH HELD UNDER HOUSING DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNTS

Cash held under the Housing Development Accounis represents monies received from purchasers of residential properties less payments or
withdrawals in accordance with Malaysian Housing Developers (Control and Licensing) Act 1966, and Singapore Housing Developers {Control
and Licansing) Act (Cap 130) The amouints are held at call with banks.

27 BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND CASH

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

Deposits with licensed banks 3,608.8 18788 230.8 277 6
Baposits with finance cormpanies 72.8 418 50.5 -
Deposits with other corporations 85.8 2416 - -
Cash at bank and in hand 672.1 770.0 8.7 81
4,440.5 29322 290.0 2857

2007 2006 2007 2006

Effective interest ratas were as follows: % % % %
Deposits with ficensed banks 0.50-8.81 050-723 2.91-355 353-355
Deposits with finance companies 2.65-3.48 347-350 3.40-3.55 -
Deposits with other corporations 3.30-~3.49 205 -348 - -
Cash at bank 0.00-5.79 000525 - -

Deposits of the Group and Company have maturity periods ranging from on call basis to 1 year Cash &t bank are deposits held at call with

baniks
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28 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH THE NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

- GROUP
2007 2006
Non-current assets held for sale
Disposal groups ;
- investment in associates 4.7 -
- other non-clirrent assets 23.1 -
- current assets 170.7 -
Other assets 198.5 -
- properyy, plant and equipment - 129
- investment properties 2.0 -
-iand held for property development 0.2 339
200.7 468
The movements during the year reiating to non-currant assets held for sale were as follows :
2007 20056
Net book value
At 1st July as restated 46.8 -
Disposals {47.6) -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 22,9 129
Transfer from investment properties 2.0 -
Transfer from fand held for property developrment 0.2 Kk
Transfer from other assets 175.4 -
Exchange differences 0.8 -
At 30th june 200.7 468
2007 2006
Liabilitles directly associated with non-current assets held for sale
Bisposal groups :
- non-currest labilities 2.7 -
- current ligbilities 176.0 -
178.7 e

The mavaments during the year relating to liagilites directly associated with non-current assets held for sale were as follows :

2007 2006
Net book vaiue
At 1stuly - -
Transfer from fisbilities 178.7 -
At 30th June 178.7 -

The gains on disposal of non-current assets held for sale during the year have been included in the income statement as surplus on disposat of
properties

The above non-current assets and the associated lisbilities are expected to be sold within the next financiai year. The progress of major disposal
of non-current assets and the associated liabilities were as follows

{a) On 25 May 2007, Sime Darby $ingapore Limited and Orchard Nominees Private United entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with
Thal Containers Group Company Limited {"TCG") for the disposal of their entire eguity interest in the issued and paid up share capital of Sime
Rengo Packaging Singapore Limited to TCG The completion of the disposal is conditional upon, amongst others, the approval of regulatory
authorities

{b} During the year, the Group has earmarked Westminster Travel Limited for disposal Subseguent to the balance sheet date, Sime Travel
Holdings Limited antered inte a Share Purchase Agreement with Wealtlsy Aim Investments Limited ("WAIL"} and SBE E2-Capital Limited (as &
guarantor for WAIL) for the disposal of its entire equity interest in Westrminster Travel Limited The completion of the disposal is conditional
upon, amongst others, the approvals of the Registrar of Travel Agents and the Trade Industries Councit of Hong Kong
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29 SHARE CAPITAL

2007 2006

Authorised:
3,000.0 million (2004 ; 3,000 0 million) ordinary shares of RMD.50 each 1,500.0 15000
I1ssued and fully pald:
AL 18t fily — 2,465 5 miflion (2006 : 2,390 2 miliion} ordinary shares of RMG 50 each 1,232.8 1,195 1
56.5 mitlion (2006 * 34.2 million) new shares issued pursuant to the exercise of options under the

Sime Darby Employees’ Share Option Scheme 28.2 17.%
41 1 milfion new shares issued vnder the terms of the privatisation of a subsidiary - 206
At 30th June ~ 2.522.0 million (2006 : 2,465.5 mitlion) ordinary shares of RMO 80 each 1,261.0 1,232 8

() Employees' Share Option Scheme

The Company implemented an Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) which came into effect on 10th December 2001 {or a perled of
five {5) years to Sth December 2006 but may be renewed for another five (5) years or such longer period as allowed under the Companiss Act,
1945 The Scheme is governed by the Bye-Laws which were approved by the shareholders on 6th November 2001

The main features of the Scheme are as follows:

Eiigiole employees are, in the case of Malaysian citizens, full time employees of the Company or of an eligibie subsidiary, who have been
in the service of the Group for at teast one {1) continuous year including empioyees serving a fixed terrn contract of employment, the
duration of wiich {including any period of empioyment that they heve already served) should be at least three (3) years and in the case of
non-Malaysian citizens, full time executives of the Company or an eligible subsidiary, who have been in the service of the Group for at
least three (3} continuous years

The options granted may be exercised at any time before the expiry of the Schieme In full or in such fesser number of ordinary shares
provided that the number shall be in muitiples of 1,000 shares

The price at which grantees are entitied to subscribe for shares under the Scheme is the weighted average market price of the shares as
shown in the dally official fist issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the five (5} rarket days immediately preceding the respective
dates of offer of the apticns, with a discount of not more than 10% {or such other higher percentage as may be allowed by the Sacurities
Commission, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and/or other relevant authorities).

The grantees have no right to participate, by virtue of these options, in any share issue of any other company within the Group

Options granted under the Scheme carry no dividend or voting rights Upon exercise of the options, the shares issued rank pari passu in
all respacts with the then existing ordinary shares of the Company

The Board of Ditectors had, on 30th May 2004, approved the extension of the Scheme for another two (2) years upon its expiry on 9th
December 2006, However, no new optiens would be granted during the extended period

(b} Isstance of shares under the terms of the privatisation of a subsidiary

In the previous financial year, 41,139,600 new ordinary shares of RMO 50 each were issued under the terms of the privatisation of Tractors
Mataysia Holdings Berhad
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29 SHARE CAPITAL {zontihued)

The movements dliring the year in the number of share options over the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows

Number of share optiohs
Exe;rﬁ;z‘: At is’c.ﬁgg Granted  Exercised Eﬁﬁ;ﬁiﬁ; A ?S;g
Date granted AM/share ‘000 ‘000 000 ‘000
2007
28th February 2002 4.90 4,569 - {3,151 (179} 1.239
12th May 2002 509 326 - {210) ) 112
&th June 2003 5.08 3,432 - (2,957} 23 498
28th May 2004 5.47 11,642 - (10,332) {341) 969
20th May 2005 5.28 10,032 - {9,333) 33 732
26th June 2005 5.41 32,011 - {30,525) {38) 1,448
62,012 - (56,508) {506} 4,998
Weighted average exercise prices 5.34 - 5.35 5.29 5.24
2006
28th February 2002 490 10,272 ~ {5,525 (178) 4,569
12th May 2002 509 231 - (442) {63) 324
&th June 2003 508 8,356 - (4,795) (129} 3,432
28th May 2004 547 18,801 - {6,514) {645) 11,642
20t May 2005 528 27,449 - (16,878) {H3%) 10,032
26th June 2006 541 ) - 32,01% - - 32,011
65,709 32,011 {34,154) {1,554) 52,12
Weighted average exercisa prices 5.25 5.41 5.22 5.29 5.34

Share options are vested on the date granted Al outstanding options as at 30th June 2007 have a remaining contractual life of 15 years.

Details of share options exercised during the year were as follows:

Weighted
average
share price Number of
at date of Exercise share optlons
exercise price exercised Consideration
Rivi/share RIVi/share oo Received
Date exercised
2007
July ~ September 2006 5.83 4.90 240 1.2
5.98 5.09 21 0.1
5.9 5.08 126 0.6
5.94 5.47 61 0.3
5.84 5.28 238 1.3
5.97 5.41 354 1.9
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29 SHARE CAPITAL {continued)

Details of share options exercised during the year were as foliows: (continuad)

Weighted
average share Number of
price at date Exercise share options
of exercise price exercised Conslideration
RM/share RM/share ‘000 Received
Date exercised
2007
October - December 2006 6.62 4.90 g89 4.4
6.59 5.09 &4 0.3
6.71 5.08 1,087 5.1
6.84 547 . 4,114 22.5
&6.76 5.28 4,275 22.4
6.72 5.41 16,765 98.7
lanuary —~ March 2007 7.96 4.90 924 4.6
7.87 5.09 79 0.4
7.90 5.08 1,003 5.1
7.87 547 4,067 222
7.85 5.28 2,959 15.6
7.84 5.41 10,183 55.1
April — Juste 2007 9.68 4.90 1,098 54
9.52 5.09 46 0.2
2.45 5.08 821 4.2
.58 547 2,090 11.4
2.55 5.28 1,861 9.8
9.56 541 3,223 17.4
56,508 302.4
Less : Par vaiue of ordinary shares {28.2)
share premium 274.2
2008 .
uly — Septernber 2005 610 490 1,870 92
&1 509 213 1M
612 508 1,223 &2
612 547 829 45
613 528 5,850 anes
October - December 2005 618 490 2,256 111
618 509 1M 06
6 18 508 2,446 124
618 547 3,273 179
418 528 7,681 466
Janusary - March 2006 616 490 989 49
616 509 B4 05
6.16 508 711 36
616 547 1,427 78
616 528 2324 123
April - June 2006 593 490 410 20
607 509 22 a1
605 508 415 21
403 547 985 54
603 528 1,023 54
34,154 1784
Less : Par value of ordinary shares {171}
Share premiurm 1615
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30 RESERVES

Non - distrlbutable pistributable

Group Share Revaluation Capltal Exchange Retained
2007 premium reserves reserves reserves profits Total
AL 18t Juty

As previously stated 3,053.3 72.2 2154 673.4 3,556.7 7.571.0

FRS adjustments (see Note 45) - - - - 1.3 1.3

As restated 3,0833 72.2 215.4 673.4 3,558.0 7,.572.3
Currency translation differences

arising from translation of

- subsidiaries - - - 175.7 - 175.7

- associates - - - “.1 - {4.1)
Share of raserves of associates - - {0.3) 0.9 - 0.6
£ffect of dilution of interest

in #n associate - - 1.8 ~ (0.5) 1.3
Transfer between reserves — - (7.6) - 7.6 -
Net gains/{losses) not recognised

in income statement - - {6.1) 172.5 71 173.5
Net profit for the year - ~ - - 1,505.7 1,505.7
Totat income/(expense) far the

year - - (6.1} 172.5 1.512.8 1,679.2
Acquisition of additional interest

from minority shareholders - - - - {77.0) (77.0)
Issue Of shares 274.2 - - - - 274.2
Dividends - - - - {579.6} {575.6)
At 30th June 3,327.5 72.2 2023 845.9 4,414.2 8,869.1
2006
At 15t July

As previously stated 26709 722 2118 7492 31059 68100

FRS adjustments - - - - 05 0.5

As restated 28709 722 2118 7492 31064 46,8165
Currency translation differences

arising from transtation of

- stbsidiaries - - - 750y - 750

- associates - - - 01 - 01
Share of reserves of associates - - - 09 - 09
Effect of diiution of interest

in associates - - 36 o 0% 41
Goodwill written off - - - - {(56.6) {56.6}
Net gains/(losses) not recognised

in income statement - - 36 (75 8) Bé&1) {128 3
Net profit for the year - e — - 1121.4 1,121.4
Total iIncome/(expense) for the

year - - 36 {75 8 1,068 3 9931
Acquisiiion of additional interest

from minority shareholders - - - - (127 2) {127 2
Issuz of shates 3824 - - - - 3824
Pividends - - - - {486 5) (486 5)
At 30th June 30533 722 2154 6734 35580 75723
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30 RESERVES (continued)
Noh - Distributable Distributable

Company Share Capital Retained

2007 preinium reserves profits ‘Total
At 1stJuly 3,053.3 314.8 1,017.9 4,386.0
Transfers hetween reserves - {0.9) 0.9 -
Net profit for the year - - 89.9 89.9
Issue of shares 2742 - - 274.2
Dividends - - {579.6) (579.6)
Al 30th june 3,327.5 313.9 529.1 4,170.5
2006

AL 1st July 2,619 315.0 9944 35803
Transfers betwaen reserves - (43 02 -
Net profit for the year - - 5098 5098
issue of shares 3824 - - 3824
bividends - - (486 5) {486 5)
At 30th June ) 3,053.3 3148 1,017.9 4,386.0

The Group’s revakiation reserves relate mainly to a revaluation made in 1978 of the land and buildings of the Group’s plantations in Malaysia
Capital reserves reprasent mainly the retained profits capltalisec by subsidiaries

There are sufficient Maiaysian and Singapore tax credits avallable to frank approximately RMZ,408 7 milion (2006 ; RM2,129 2 million} and
RMSA6 9 million (2006 : RM761 5 million) of the ratained profits of the Group and the Company respectively if paid out as dividends In addition,
the Group ant the Company have tax exempt accounts available to frank tax exempt gividends amounting to approximately RM377 8 million:
{2006 : RMS53 4 miflion) and RM72 2 million (2006 : 480 5 miliion) for the Group and the Company respectively
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31 LOANS AND FINANCING

Group Company
2007 2004 2007 2006

Non Current

Term loans - secured 64.4 772 - -

Term loans - Unsecured 399.2 1,006 0 - -

Al Mursbahah Medium Term Notes - unsecured {see Note 32) 1,000.0 1,0000 1,000.0 1,0000
1,463.6 2,0832 1,000.0 1,0000

current

Bank overdraits

- unsecured (see Note 39) 12.7 18 - -

Portion of term Ioans due within one year

- segured 86.6 520 - -

- ynsecured 783.9 209 - -

Other short term borrowings

- secured 62.4 B9 - -

- unsecured 505.9 1,133.0 - =
1,456.5 1,286.6 - -
2,920.1 3,339.8 1,000.0 1,000.0

included in unsecured term loans is an amount of RM37 4 milion (2006 : RM37 4 million) i respect of the 12% cumulative subordinated
urconvertinle redeemable unsecured loan stocks issued by one of the Group's subsidiaries in Malaysia The repayment of the loan stocks is
subordinated to at unsecurad facilities of the subsidiary The loan stocks are redeemable at par at any date determined by the subsidiary’s
Roard up to 31st December 2023

The secured term loans and other short term borrowings are secured by fixed and floating charges over property, plant and equipment, a
property development project and other assets of certain subsidiaries

Group Company
‘ 2007 2006 2007 2006
The averege effective interest rates/profit margin are as follows: % % % %
Term loans:
~ before interest rate swaps 6.16 598 - -
- after interest rate swaps 6.07 434 - -
Al Murabahah Medium Term Notes A4.34 434 4.34 434
Bank overdrafts 4.50 823 - -
Other short term borrowings 4.74 490 - -

The term Ioans and Al Murabahah Medium Term Notes are subject to the following maturity periods:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Not later thar 1year B70.5 729 - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 2727 7704 - -
tater than 2 years but not later than & years 1,153.5 1,229 8 1,000.0 1,000 0
Later than 5 years 37.4 830 - -
2,334.41 2,156.1 1,000.0 1.000.0

Conventional term ipans that are subject to contraciual interest rates repricing within 1 year amounted to RiM314 2 million {2006 : RM1,064 4
million)
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32

33

34

AL MURABAHAH MEDIUM TERM NOTES - UNSECURED

The Company has issued RM500 million 7 years and RMS00 miillion 4 years Al Murabahah Medium Term Notes under the RM1,500 mition Al
Murabahah Commercial Paper {MCP) and Medium Term Notes {MMTN'} Programme (‘Programme’) at par with a profit rate of 4 38% ard
4 30% per annum, respectively

Sakient features of the Programma are as follows:

» Total otstanding nominal value of the MCP and MMTN (colizctively known as ‘Nates’) shall not exceed RM1,500 million subject io a sub-
limit of RMS00 miilion for the MCP.

» The tenure of the Programme is Up to Saven years from date of the first issuance of any Notes unger the Programme

« MCP has a maturity of 12 months or below and is mandatorily redeemed at nomingl vaiie on maturity date The profit for the MCP &
payable on maturity of the MCP.

« MMTN has a maturity of 1 year but nat more than 7 years and cn condision that the MMTN mature prior to the expiry of the tenure of the
Programme. The MMTN ase mandatortly redeemed at norminal value on maturity date. The proiit for the MMTN is payabla either in fixed
amounts at the end of each profit period or on matutity of the MMTN

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
Trade payables 2,438.7 1,809.0 1.5 07
Accruals 2,127.6 1,9317 68.3 394
Progress billings 16.9 63 - -
Amounis dus to custormers on construction contracts {See Note 25) 142.0 431 - -
Amounts due to associates 0.5 04 - -
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities 1.8 4.1 - -
4,727.5 37946 ’ 69.8 401

Credit terms of trade payables and amounts due to customers ranged from 7 to 120 days (2006 1 7 10 180 days)

PROVISIONS ~ GROUP

Maintenance and Property

2007 warranty  development Others Total
At 1st iy 122.6 7.5 - 1301
Additions 157.6 - - 157.6
tnused amounis reversed {18.4} - - {18.4
Charged to income statement 139.2 - ~ 139.2
Utilised (84.2) - - (84.2)
Exchange differences 1.9 - - 1.9
At 30th June 179.5 7.5 - 187.0
2006

At 1st hily 1224 75 05 1306
Additions 1367 - - 1367
Unused amounts reversed {482 - )] {487
Charged/iwriteback) to income staternent 885 - 05 28.0
Utlised (85 1) - - (85 1)
Bxchange differences {3.4) - - {(3.4)
AL 30th Jlune ) 122.6 75 - 130.1
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35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

Unsecured contingencies:

Trade and performance guarantees 2,300.1 17121 2418 415

Claims pending egainst subsidiaries 22.8 437 - -

Guarantees ang contingencies relating to the borrowings of subsidiaries - - 868.0 857 6
2,322.9 17758 1,109.5 899.1

Authorlsed capital expenditure not

provided for In the financlal statements:

Property, plant and equipment

- contracted 435.4 1713 - 03

- not contracted 1,025.0 204.1 - -
1,460.4 3754 - 03

Rights to use land

- not contracied 285.9 - - -
1,746.3 375.4 - 0.3

commitments under non-cancellable operating leases:

Expiring not later than 1 year 131.0 929 0.2 oz

Expiring later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 153.9 1612 04 Dé

Expiring later than 5 years 181.1 198.4 - -

466.0 4525 0.6 08

(a

{b)

{c)

Berkeley Son Bhd ("BSB") commenced a legal suit against Consolidated Flantations Berhad ("CFB”) for breach of a sale and purchass
agreement and Seeks damages amounting to RMS4 millicn (or aiternatively RM34 milliory on the basis that CPB had failed to defiver a
subdivided title in respect of 85 acres of land purchased by BS8

BSE's ciaim for damages was dismissed with costs by the High Court on 9th March 2002 and BSB had appeaaled to the Court of Appeal on
27th March 2002 Tha appaal was heard on 7th May 2007 and was adjourned to 8th lanuary 2008

Certain mingrity shareholders of Sime Bank Berhad ("Sime Bank”) had taken legal action against Sime Darby Berhad ("SDB") for falling to
make a general offer to the rest of the shareholders when 60 35% of the equity of Sime Bank was acguired. On 31st March 2003, the High
Court had decided in favour of the minority shareholders These legal proceedings have since been resalved amicably, and the
assessment of damages proceedings have been struck out The appesls lodged by SDB against the High Court’s decision of 315t March
2003 are in the process of being withdrawn The proceedings of a similar nature against SDB commenced by two other former
shareholders of Sime Bank have also been resolved amicably and the proceedings have been discontinued

sime Bank had grantett a financial facility to Teras Cemerlang $dn Bhd (*TCSB") Sime Bank sued TCSB for failing to repay the said faciity
TCSR filed a counterclaim against Sime Bank, Sime Securities Sdn. Bhd ("55"), SOB and Shafiq it Abdutiah {"SSA", alleging that SDB is
vicariously liabla for the transactions allegedly carried out by SSA in the dealings between 55 and TCSB

SDR filed an application to strike out TCSR's counter claim against it On 9th Octobar 2002, TCSB filed an appiication to the Court to stay
the appiication to strike out and it was granted a stay. SDB filed an appeal against the stay No hearing date has been fixed

5D8 is appealing against the Senior Assistant Registrar’s declslon not to strike aut TCSR's colnterclaim. The matter has now been fixad for
further mentlon on 14th September 2007
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

36

a7

OTHER NON-CASH ITEMS

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
Other rion cash itemns include:
Write off of inventories 69.2 49 - -
Allowance for doubtiul debts 411 559 0.3 01
Writehack of allowance for doubtfui debts {26.8) (60.2) - -
Property, plant and eguipment written off 12.9 &7 - -
net surplus on disposal of machinery, eguipment and vehicles {11.8) {28.0) (0.8) ©3
Others 11.5 {4.3) (0.8} 1.1

96.1 (25.0) {(1.3) 0.9
NET CASH INFLOW/AOUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Group company

2007 2006 2007 2006
interest income received 135.2 777 50.3 286
lnvestment ingome received 24.5 31 12.2 a7
Purchase of investments 0.2) 74 - -~
increase/(decrease) in amounts owing by subsidiaries - - 771.1 {5134}
Purchase of subsidiaries (see Note 406(s)) {4.0) (135 8} - -
Purchase of additional shares in exising subsidiaries (see Note 40(b)) {96.4) (86.1) {598.0) (78.2)
Purchase of associates (11.3) {18.5) - -
Purchase of a joirily controlied entity - 0.5) - -
Capital repayment by assuciates - 414 - -
Purchase of properiy, plant angd equipment {974.0) (698 B) (5.5) 89
pyrchase of investment properties {1.2} {22) - -
Purchase of prepaid lease rentals (2.9) (32.9) - -
Cost incurred on biclogicat assets (7.4 (4.3} - -
Purchase of/cost incurred on land held for property development (69.3) (22 4) -~ -
Purchase of intangible asset .0 (0.5) - -
Proceeds from sale of investments 4.2 298 3.3 -
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries {see Note 41} 183.5 27 4 - -
Proceeds from sale of associates 748.5 57.5 - -
Broceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment 283.2 158.7 1.2 16
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 43.4 21.0 - -
Proceeds from sale of land held for property development 97.1 - - -
Praceads from sale of prepaid lease rentals 3.8 i5 - -
proceeds from liguidation of 2 subsidiary 13.9 - - -

365.6 (581.5) 234.6 (566.6)
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38 NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Finance costs paid {139.6) (124 8) (43.4) 327
Procesds from shares issued by Sime Darby Berhad 302.4 178 6 302.4 1786
Proceeds from shares issued to minority shareholders of subsidiaries 9.5 14 - -
Net borrowings (repaid)/raised {38.6} 7019 - 500.0
Dividends paid to shareholders of Sime Darby Berhad (579.6) (486 5} {579.6) {484 D)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries {61.5) 760 - -
{507.4) 194.6 (320.6) 1659.4
39 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents at year end comprised the following;
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
8ank balances, deposits and cash {see Note 27) 4,440.5 29322 290.0 2857
Bank overdrafts —unsecured {see Note 31) (12.7} {1y - -
4,422.8 25204 2%0.0 2857

52



SIME DARBY BERHAD

Comparny No.
41759 M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {contintied)
40 ACQUISITION AND INCORPORATION OF SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP
{a) Actuisition of subsidiatles

subsigiaries acquired during the year ended 30th June 2007 were as faliows:

Purchase Group's

Name of subsidlarles acquired consideration effective Interest (%) Effective acqulsition date
Dunippilio (Hong Kong) Limited AMO.5 000 4th july 2004
Sime Darby Resort Sdn Bhd RMZ 000 11th July 2008
sime O&M (Thailand) Co. Ltd (formerly known as

Fortum Energy Selutions (Thailand) Company Lid) 558 1000 3ist July 2006
Sime Darby Brunsfield Resources 5¢n Bhd RM2 00 16th August 2006
sime Barby Brunsfield Property Management Sdn Bhd Rz 600 10th Augiist 2006
sime Darby Brunsfield Properties Holding Sdn Bhd RMZ 400 10th Auglist 2006
Sime Darby Brunsfieid Damansara Sdn 8hd Rmv2 400 10th August 2006
Stme Darby Brunsfield Resart Sdn Bhd RMZ 400 10th August 2006
sime Darby 8runsfield Kenny Hills Sdr: Biwd RM2 é00 10th August 2004
Sime Darby Brunsfield Darby Hills Sdn Bhd RMZ &040 10th August 2006
Sime Darby Brunsfield Motorworld Stin Bhd RM2 &00 10th ALIgust 2006
Stme Darby Brunsfisid Taipan City Sdr 8hd RM2 600 10th August 2006
Yunnan Bow Yue Vishicle Trading Company Lid a7 1000 31st August 2006
sime Darby Catering Services Sdn Bhd RM2 100.0 21st March 2007
sime Darby Overseas (HK) Limited RM1 1000 27th Mareh 2007
sima Darby Brunsfield Project Manegement Scn Bhd RM2 400 28th March 2007
sima barby Nautical 5dn Bhd (formerly known as

Macten Engineerirg Sdn Bhd) BM2Z 1000 24th May 2007
Sirme Darby EcoSystems Sdn Bhd (formarly known as

Gem Streams Sdn 8hd) RM2 1000 ist Juna 2007
sime Darby Brunsfield Holdings Limited (formerly Rkm23 520 28th June 2007

kaown as Sime Darby Brunsfield China Pte Lid)

Details of the essets, liabiities and net cash outflow arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries were as follows:

carrying Falr Carrying Fair

value value vailie valie

2007 2007 2006 2006

Property, plant and equipment 0.2 0.2 561 561
Prepald lease rentals - - 44 6 485
Deferred taxation - - - 07
Cash and cash equivaients 1.5 1.5 56 56
Other net current assets/labliities 5.0 5.0 o8 {(78)
Net a55ets 6.7 6.7 955 997
Minority interests - - {17.9) (7%
Net assets acquired 6.7 5.7 78.6 &1.8
Goodwill written off to retained profits - 566
Goodwill retained in balance sheet 3.5 30
Cost of acquisition including direct eosts related to the acgidsition 0.2 1414
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries acquired {6.2) {5 6)
Net cash outilaw on acquisition of subsidiaries (see Note 37) 4.0 135.8

The net profit of the acquired subsldiaries included in the consolidated income statement amounted to RM2 9 miifion

If the acquisitions were effected at beginning of the period, the Group's revenue and net profit would have been RM20,74% 9 million and
RM?1,597 9 million respectively
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40 ACQUISITION AND INCORPORATION OF SUBSIDIARIES — GROUP {continued)

{b} Acquisition of additlonal interest In existing subsidiaries

The additional interests acquired were as follows:

Purchase Group's additional

Name of subsidiarles consideration effective interest (%%} Effective acgulsition date
Hyundai Sime Darby Berhad 30 04 13th September 2006
Weifang Sime Darby Port Co Ltd 518 150 25th November 2006

174 4.0 18th January 2007
Weifang Sime Darby Water Co iid 173 150 25th Novernber 2006

69 50 18th January 2007
The minority interests acquired and the net cash outflow arising from the acquisition of additionat interest in existing subsldiaries were as
follows:
2007 2006
Minority interest acquired 19.4 2004
Gooowili written off to retained profits 77.0 1272
tCosts of acgUisition including direct costs refated to the acquisition 26.4 32756
Less: Shares issued as conslderation (see Note 29(b) - (241 5)
Net cash cutflow on acquisition (see Note 37) 96.4 86.1
{c} Incorporation of subsidiaries
The subsidiaries incorporated during the year ended 30th June 2007 were as follows:
Group's

Name of subsidiaries effective interest (%) incorporation date
Sime Darby Brunsfield Austraiia Pte. L1d 0.0 14th July 2006
Oysier Cove international Pty Ltd 42.0 14th July 2006
Sime Darby Regent Motors Limited 1000 8th August 2006
¥injiang Sime Darby Property Co d 1060 2¢th Qcicher 2004
Shanghai Xin Biao Xian Motor Commerce Company Limited 1000 30th October 2006
Ziho Sime Darby Chernicals Co Ltd 510 16th January 2007
Xinjiang Sime Darby Heavy Equipment Co Ltd 1000 5th March 2007
OC| Management Pty Lid 420 28th March 2007
Oyster Cove Properdes Pty Ltd 420 7th June 2007
Macau CEL Machinery Company Limited 100.0 21st June 2007
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41

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP

subsidiaries disposed during the year ended 30th June 2007 were as follows:

Name of subsidiaries Group's effective Interest disnosed (%}
Century Automotive Products Son Bhd 99 6
Yunnan Sime Winner Motor Services Co Limited 900
Sime Conoco Energy Sdn Bhd 510
Simelease (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd 100.0
PT Guru indonesia 750
Sime Inax Sdn Bhd 800

Details of the assets, liabilities and net cash infiow arising from the disposal of subsidiaries were a3 follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease rentals

Deferred taxation

cash and cash equivalents
Other net current assets
Minority interests

Net assets disposed
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

Proceads from disposal of subsidiaries
tess ; Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries disposed

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries {see Note 37)

55

Effective disposai date

24th July 2006
25th July 2006

14th February 2007
13th Aprif 2007
27th Aprii 2007

16th June 2007

2007 2006
16.3 317
ur 98
3.3 20
34.4 56
58.6 26
(5.3} {13.8)
147.3 339
70.6 059
217.9 330
(34.4) {56}
183.5 274
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42 SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
Primary reporting format - business segments
The main business segments of the Group comprise the following |
Plantations — Palm gil refining and fractionation, and oil pain: cultivation
Propersy - Property development, management and investment, and provision of golf and other recreational services
Heavy equipment - Sales and servicing of heavy equipment
motor vehicles — Assermbly and distrioution of vehicles, provision of after-sale services, and hire purchase ant lease financing

Energy and utlities ~ Engineering design and fabrication, system integration, power ganeration, treatment and supply of treated water, and
ownership and management of port facilitles

General trading, services and others — Aircraft composites components manufacturing, bedding operations, marketing of corsumer and Industrial
products, provision of healthcare services, and insurance broking,

Transactions hetwaen segments are cartied out on an arm's length basis The effects of such intersegment transactions are eliminated on
consolidation

General
trading,
Energy  services
Heavy Motor and and
2007 Plantations Property equipment vehlcles  utllitles others Elimination Group
Revenue
External revenue 1,708.1 374.5 6,669.5 7,017.5 2,300.5 2,166.9 - 20,7350
Intersegment ravenue - 35.5 10.4 3.2 158.1 50.5 (114.7) -
Total revenue 1,706.1 210.0 6,679.9 7,020.7 2,315.6 2,217.4 (114.7) 20,735.0
Results
Segment results before unusuat
iterms 310.6 204.5 647.9 63.2 221.5 311 - 1,478.8
Unusual itermns 1.5 109.7 (3.5 45.9 433.3 (19.9) - 567.0
Segment results 31z2.1 314.2 644.4 1091 654.8 11.2 - 2,045.8
Associates and jointly controlled
entities {0.1) 16.0 11.9 {0.1} 28.0 14.3 - 70.0
Profit before interest 2,115.8
Unallocated costs (61.7}
investment and interest income 170.3
Finance costs {138.4)
Profit before taxation 2,086.0
Taxation (488.6)
Net profit for the year 1,597.4
galance sheet
Segment assets 1,504.3 2,605.9 3,760.7 3,287.3 2,052.5 487.2 {109.0) 13,588.9
Associates and jointly controfed
Entities 1.9 116.3 46.7 41.3 15.5 50.1 - 2718
Non-current assets held for sale - 22 - - - 198.5 - 200.7
Tax assets 4311
Other assats 50633
Total assets 19,555.8
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42  SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP {continued)

primary reporting format - business segments

General
trading,
Energy  services
Heawvy Motor and and
2007 Plantations  Property eguipment  vehicles utifities others Elimination Group
Segment Habilifies 189.0 606.3 1,422.6 1,342.7 1,161.4 296.5 (109.0) 49145
Liabilites directly associated with
non-current assets classified as
held for sale - - - - - 178.7 - 178.7
Tax liabilities a41%.1
Other liahilities 2,920.1
Total liabilities 8,432.4
Other information
Capital expenditure 89.3 39.1 474.4 171.5 166.9 A4%9.3 - 990.5
pepreciation and amortization 40.8 35.7 1423 952 77.7 31.3 423.0
Impaiment losses 0.2 - 4.2 19,4 - 26.1 - 49.6
Reversal of impairment losses 0.4 24.3 0.5 - - - - 25,2
Nen-cash expenses 1.5 18.5 26.8 68.9 2.6 4.3 - 129.6
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42 SEGMENT INFORMATION ~ GROUR (continued)

primary reporting format - business segments (continued)

General
Energy trading,
Heawy Metor and seIViCces
2004 Piantations Property  equipment  vehicles utilities  and others  Elimination Group
Revenue
External revenue 1,475 9 7863 56585 82877 1,7369 23168 - 20,1621
Intersegment revenue 0.7 220 13.7 11.3 9.4 48.9 {106.0) -
Total revenue 1,474.6 8083 55722 82990 41,7463 2,.3657 (1060 20,1621
Results
Segment results before unusual
items 2485 2077 5866 3572 2178 36 - 16234
Uniisual items 106 (1.6) i1 37 {17 4) 42 - (7.8}
Segment results 2591 2063 557.7 360.9 200.4 KN - 16156
Assaciates and jointly controfled
entities 1.4 17.0 10.2 1.0 65.8 (12.8) - 82.4
Profit before interest 1,698 2
Unallocated costs {418}
Investment and interest income 895
Finance costs {121.8)
Profit before taxation 1,634.1
Taxation (429.9)
Net profit for the year 1,204.2
Balance sheet
Segment assets 1,400.6 23270 30278 35928 : 16674 1,082 8 (212.0) 12,8864
A%sl?t?éiies and jointly contralied ~ 1091 40.1 432 2979 540 . 5463
Non-current assets heid for sale - 46.8 - - - - - 468
Tax assets 4991
Other assets 35608
Totat assets 17,539 4
segment liabilities 1557 5838 1,092.7 1,115 1 647 & 5420 (212.00 39247
Tax fiabilities 4793
Other lisbilities 3,339.8
Total fiabilities 7,7438
Other information
Capital expenditure 640 39.9 3320 235.3 387 288 - 7387
Denreclation and amortization 418 8o 194 B&67 688 448 - 3806
Impairment iosses - 37 10 34 244 - - 325
Reversal of impaimment iosses 38 - - - - - - 38
Non-cash expenses 1.8 0.7 17.0 345 10.8 3041 - 94.9
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42 SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP {(continued)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segmaents

External revente Sepment assets - Capital expenditure
2067 2006 2007 2006 2007 2004
Malaysia 6,223.2 62428 6,767.6 70770 298.7 1980
Singapore 2,790.8 2,845 4 1,494.1 1,3720 59.9 913
China 3,692.2 4,2697 1,268.0 1,235C B81.0 410
Australia 4,841.6 40710 - 2,468.5 15168 437.0 3296
Other countries 3,187.2 27332 1,590.7 1,285 6 113.9 788
20,735.0 20,1621 13,588.9 12,886 4 990.5 7387
Investrment in jointly controlied
entities/associates 271.8 5463
Non-current assets held for sale 200.7 468
Tax assets 431.% 4991
Other assets 5,063.3 3,560.8
Tota! assets 19,555.8 17,539.4

Revenus was analysed by the country in which the customers were located Segment assets and capital expenditure were classified on the basls
of the location of the assets

segment resuits

2007 2006
Malaysia 637.4 4668 4
Singapore 603.0 2285
China 166.3 1515
Austraiia 471.3 4083
Other countries 176.1 2097
Profit before interest 2,054.1 1,666 4
Investment and interest income 170.3 895
Finance costs {138.4) {1218}
Profit before taxation 2,086.0 1,634 1
Taxation (488.6) (429 9)
Net profit for the year 1,597.4 1,204.2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

43 DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

m accordance with Section 4 15 of Practice Note No  12/2001 issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the detalls of recurrent related party
transactions conducted during the year ended 30th June 2007 pursuant to the shareholders' mandate and announcements made were as

follows:~

Subsidiaries of the

Related party and nature of

Sdn. 8hd. ("M58"}

from KGSB

Company Transacting party Nature of transaction relationship 2007 2006
Sirne Rengo Rengo Co Lid procuremerit of Rengo Co Ltd, 26 44
Packaging (Malaysia} management and technical | substantial sharehoider of SRPM
Scn ghd {"SRPM") advice by SRPM from
Rengo Co Lid. and
purchase of raw materials
Sime Kubota Sdn Kubota Corporation purchase of agricultural Kubota Corporation, 21.3 25
Bhd {"3K") tractors, engines and parts | substantial shareholder of SK
by SK from Kubota
Corporation
Syarikat Malacca Hotel Equatorial Procurement of hotel Hotal Equatorial (M} Sdn Bhd 1.4 11
Stralts Inr Sén Bhd. | Management Sdn 8hd | operation managemant which is the holding company of
{"SMSH"} ("HEM") and technical advice by HEM, is a stibstantial shareholder of
SMSI from HEM SMSE
Sime Rengo Rengo Co Ltd purchase of goods by SRPS | Rengo Co- Lid, & substantial 48 a7
Packaging Singapare from Rengo Co Ltd shareholder of SRPS
Limited ("SRPS")
Inokom Corporation | Hyundai Motor Royalty payment and HMC , a substantial shareholder of 120.4 6378
Sdry. Bhd. {"C5B") Company ("BMC") procuremnent of Compietely | 1CSB
Kniocked-Down ("CKD")
packs, Completely Buil:-Up
{“CBU" cars and ancillary
senvices by ICSB from HMC
Hyundai Motor India Lid, | Procurement of CKD motor | HMC which is the holding company 28 355
{"HMiIL" vehicie components by of HMIL, is a substantial shareholder
iCSB from HMIL of ICSB
Ford Malaysia Sdn Ford Motor Company Procurement of mator Ford Moter Company, & substantial 105.3 156 2
Bhd {"FM58") and its subsidiaries vehicles and their sharehoider of FMSB
{"FMC group”) components, accounting
and ancillary services by
FMSB from FMC group
Otofin Sdn. Bhd Kartiks Gemilang Sdn. Purchase of products and | Mr Toh Hong Hooi, a director and 0.7 05
{"0sB" Bhd ("KGSB"), Otofin services by 0S8 from OP} | shareholder of OSB, KGSB, and OPJ
power (lohor) 5dn Bhd. | and MSB He also has indirect interests in
{("OPI") and Maresqsue | Rental of premises by 0SB | MSB 0.6 04
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43 DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {continued)

Other significant, related party transactions werg as follows:

Group company
2007 2006 2007 2008
{a) Transactions with subsidlaries
Commission and management fees income, and sales of goods -~ - 55,7 42.8
(b Transactions with associates
Forwarding services rendered by KN Sime Logistics Sdn. Bhd 3.4 8§ - -
insurance services rendered by Union Sime Darby (Thaitand) Limited 1.6 25 - -
Progress billings for properties under construction acquired from Artasian
Investments Pie. Lid 1.6 460 - -
Provision of marine eguipment and services to subsidiaries of Jaya Heldings
Limited 1.5 462 - -
Provision of IT services to Sime Kansal Paints Sdn Bhd 0.2 0?2 - -
Purchase of product and services from Chubb Singapore Lid 0.1 - - -
Rental income from ;
- FG Wilson Pte Ltd 0.3 03 - -
- KN Sime Logistics Sdn 8hd 0.9 0.9 - -
(c) Transactions with subsldiaries” minority shareholders
Sales of goods and performance of services to Gunnebo Holdings APS and its
related companies 15.7 139 - -
Payment to SIRIM Berhad for non-exclusive right to use of the word "SIRIM” in
the name of a subsidiary - 1.0 - -
{(d} Remuneration of lkey management personnel
Safary 5.2 42 1.7 1.5
Bonus 2.3 17 1.0 o7
Allowances 0.4 - - -
Retirement gratuity 0.4 - 0.4 -
Defined contribution plans 0.7 05 0.3 02
Estimated monetary valus of benefits by way of usage of the Group’s and
Company's asseis 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2

puring the financial year ended 30th Jung 2004, & totzl of 408,000 share options were grented to the key management perscnnel of the Group
There were no naw share options granted to the key management personnel during the financial year ended 30th June 2007

There were no material contracts subsisting s at 30th June 2007 or if not then subsisting, entered into since the end of the previous year by the
Company or its subsidiaries which invoived the interests of Directors or substantial shareholders
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

43 DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {continted)

44

The outstanding balances with subsidiaries were shown in Notg 13 end the significant ousstanding balances with other related parties as at 30th
June 20067 were as follows:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
{a) Amount owing by/{to) following assoclates
KN Sime Logistics Sdn. Bhd 1.6 19 - -
Artasian Investments Pte. Lid 32.6 35,5 - -
(b} Amount owing by/{to} following subsidiarfes’ minority shiareholiders
Rango Co Lid 0.6) {+8) - -
Kubota Corporation (2.1} ()] - -
Gunnebo Holdings APS and its related cormpanies 2.9 22 - -
Ford Metor Company and its related campanies (4.6 5.2) - -

All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable within normal credit periods

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financlal risk management ohjectives and policles

“The Group's activities £xpose it to & variety of financlal tisks, incliding foreign currency exchange sk, interest rate risk, market risk, credit
risk, and liquidity and cash fiow risk The Group's overall financial risk management objective Is to ensure that the Group creates vaiue for its
shareholders Financial sisk management is carried out through risk reviews, internal cortrol systems, inslrance programmes and
agherence to Group’s financiat risk management policies. The Board regularly reviews these risks and approves the policies covering the
management of these risks. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forelgn exchange contracts and interest rate swaps 0
hedge certain exposures. |t does not trade in financial nstrurments.

Forelgn cuirency exchange ris

The Group is expesed 1o currancy isk 2s 2 resuit of the foreign currency trensactions eniered Irito by subsidiaries in currencies other than
thair functional currency These companies enter into forward foreign @xchange COMtracts 1o limit thelr exposure on foreign currency
receivahles and pavables, and on cash flows generated from anticipated transactions denominated in forelgn currencies

Interest rate risk

The Graup's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates Interest rate exposure
which arises from certain of the Group's borrawings is managed through the use of fixed and floating deht and derivative financial
instruments Derivative financial instruments are used, where appropriate, to generate the desired interest rate profile.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when cerivative instruments are used or sales made on deferred credit terms The Group seeks to invest cash assets
safely and profitably. It also seeks to control credit risk by setting appropriate credit history. Furthermare, sales 1o Custormers are usually
suspended when earfier amounts are overdue by more than 180 days The Group cansiders the risk of material loss in the evertt of non-
perfermance by a financial counterparty to be unikely

At batance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maxirmum exposure to credit risk for the Group and for
the Company were represented by the carrying amount of gach financlal asset and in respect of derivative financial instruments, the
maximum exposure were as disciosed In Note 44 (e}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)

44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

{a)

{b)

Financial risk management objectives and policles {continued)

liguidity and cash flow risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficlent cash and marketable securities and the availabifity of funding through an
adequate armount of cormmitted credit facilities

Fair value estimation for disclosure purposes

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of sach class of financial instruments for which it is
practicable to estimate the value:

Short term financial instruments
The carrying amolints of inancial assets and iabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate their falr values

Investiments
The fair values of some investments are estimated based on quoted market prices for those or similar investmants. For other investments for

which thete are no quoted market prices, a reascnabie estimate of fair value could not be made witheut incurring excessive cost Therefore,
stich investments are valuaed at cost subject to review for impalrment

Long-term financial instruments
The fair value of the Group's long term financial instruments is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current

market rate availabie to the Group for similar Instruments

Derivative financial instruments
The falr value of interest rate end currency swaps is calculated at the present value of the estimated future cash flows The fair vaiue of

farward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date
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44

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

currencies profile of major financial assets and financial llabliities:

Group
Denominated in other than functional currencies
United New Denominated
States Australian Qatar Zealand Singapore in functional
2007 dollar dollar  Euro tlyal dollar dollar Others currencles  Total
Invesgments - - - - - 0.4 - 344.3 344.7
Trade receivables 353.2 2.0 12.8 74.8 1.7 45.7 1.1 1,654.0 2,1553
Cash held under
Housing
Development
Accounts - - - e - - - 2781 278.1
Bank balances,
deposits and cash 435.7 191.1 17.6 6.1 37.3 40.5 16.7 3,695.5 4,440.5
Trade payables {106.8) (1.2) (31.4) (0.2 {0.4) {19.7} (40.3) (2,238.7) {2,438.7)
Non-current
borrowings (60.1) - - - - - - (1,403.5) (1,463.6)
Current borrowings (699.1) - - - - - - (757.4) (1,456.5)
(77.1) 191.9 {1.00 807 38.6 66.9 {12.5) 1,572.3 1,B59.8
2005
investments - o - - - 04 - 3480 3484
Finance iease
receivables - - - - - -~ - 49 e
Trade receivabies 1623 - 52 G43 1297 292 B3 15896 20454
Cash held under
Housing
Development
Accounts - - - - - - - 2802 2802
Bank balances,
deposits and cash 1722 641 14 - 255 334 274 26082 29322
Trade payables (1847} 210 620 (2 4) - {219 {169 2) (1,3667) (1,8090)
Non-clrent
borrowings (7952) - — - - - - {1,288.0) {2,0832)
Current borrowings (22.4) - - - ~ (1.3 {1,232.9)  (1,256.6)
(667.8) 62.0 (55.4) 919 155.2 411 (307 8) 1,6803 11995

The financial assets and {inancial liabilities of the Company are denorminated malnly in Ringgit Malaysia, the functional currency of the

Company
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
{d) Off halance sheet financial instruments

#  Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to currency risk as a result of the foreign currency transactions entered into by
companies in currencies other than their functional currency The Graup maintains a natura! hedge, whenever possible, by borrowing in
the currency of the cotntry in which the investment is located or by borrowing in currencies that match the future revenue stream 1o be

generated from its investments

Foreign exchange exposures in transactiona! currercles other than functional currencies of the operating entities are kept 10 an
acceptable lavel Material foreign currency transaction exposures are hedged, mainly with derivative financial instruments such as

forward foreign exchange coniracts

As at balance sheet date, the Group had ertered into forward foreign exchange contracts with the foliowing notional amounts and

maturities:

Group

2007

Forward contracts used to hedge receivables

- Euro

- Japanese yen

- Qatar riyal

- nited States dotlar
- Dthers

Forward contracts used to hedge anticipated purchases

- Elro

- Japanese yen

- Pound stesling

- Singapore dollar

- United States dollar
- Others

Forward contracts used to hedge payables

- Australian deilar

- EUre

- Japanese yen

- Pound sterting

- Singapore dollar

- Ursited States dollar
- Gthers

65

Maturlties
Within 1 year

1 year of more Total
1.7 - 1.7

3.6 - B.6
152.0 - 152.0
780.9 7483 1,829.2
9 - 3.9
947.1 748.3 1,695.4
5.5 0.1 5.6
0.% 0.9

1.1 - 1.1

0.6 - 0.6
112.9 19.7 132.6
1.4 - 1.4
122.4 19.8 142.2
23.7 - 23.7
247.0 2.9 249.9
78.2 - 78.2
39.9 - 39.9
44.0 - 44.0
327.9 - 327.9
5.1 - 5.1
765.8 2.9 768.7
1,835.3 771.0 2,606.3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
A4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d} Off balance sheet financial Instruments {continued)

(Y Forward foreign exchange contracts {continued)

2006

Forward contracts used to hedge receivables
- Euro

- Japangse yen

- Qatar riyal

- United States dollar

Forward contracts used to hedge anticipated purchases
-~ EUro

- Japanese ven

- Pound sterling

- Singapore dollar

- United States dollar

- Others

Forward contracts used {0 hedge payables
- Australian dollar

- Euro

- Japanese yen

- Pound stering

- Singapore doliar

« United States doliar

- Qthers

Cotnpany
2007

Forward contracts used o hedge anticipated purchases
- United States doilar

2004

Eorward contracts used to hedge anticipated purcheses
- United States doliar

&4

aturites
Within 1year

1year or more Total
311 - 3
81 - 81
407 9 - 407 9
504.3 57 5100
951.4 57 957.1
707 75 782
28 - 28
196 - 196
09 - 09
184 6 43 1589
6.2 - 6.2
2548 118 266.6
198 - 18
2418 - 2418
839 - 839
B4 - 84
Hi% - 189
3092 - g2
0.1 - .1
6821 - 6821
1,888.3 17.5 1,908.8
5.5 - 5.5
5.8 - 5.8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}

44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

{d) Off balance sheet financlal Instruments (contihued)

(i

(i)

Interest rate swaps

Intersst rate swap and currency swap conracts were entered into by subsitiaries which entitled them to recsive interest at ficating
rates on rotional principal amounts and obliges them to pay interest at fixed rates on the same amounts The differences between
fixed rate and floating rate interest amounts celcuiated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts are exchanged at
periodic intervals

The terms and notlonal principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap and cross currency interest rate swap contracts of the
Group at the balance sheet date, which are denominated in United States ollars and Thai Bant were as follows:

2007 2006
Not later than 1 year 743.1 80.0
Later than 1 and not later than 5 years 52.0 2171
Later than 5 years - 36.1
795.1 $,033.2

Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk and market risk in relation to the above off balance sheet financiai

instruments
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44  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

{e} Fairvalue

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities of the Group and Company at the balance sheet date approximated their fair values

except for the following:

Group Company
Carrying Fair  Carrying Falr
Note amount value amount Value
Financial assets
2007
fnvestment in subsidiaries 13
- Quoted shares - - 646.3 2,044.6
- Unquoted shares - - 3,057.2 *
MNet amounts due from subsidiaries 13 - - 2,270.3 **
Investment in associatas ~ unguoted shares 15 n/a n/a 1.8 *
Investments 16
« Quoted shares 1.7 7.4 0.5 5.8
- Unguoted shares 343.0 hek 191.6 Rk
2006
nvestment in substdiaries 13
- Quoted shares - - 646 3 1,141.0
- Unguoted shares - - 2,455 2 *
Net amounts due frorm subsidiaries 13 - - 3,040.9 ok
investment in associates - unguoted shares 15 n/a n/a 18 *
Investments 16
- Quoted shares 34 % 29 54
- Ungueted shares 3448 ks 1916 *rH
Non-current net investment In finance feases 21 454.1 * - -
Financial liabllities
2007
Tarm loans 31 1,296.7 1,296.7 - -
Unconvertible redeermnable unsecured loan stocks 31 37.4 * - -
Al Musabahiah Medium Term Notes 31 1,000.0 1,013.5 1,000.0 1,013.5
2006
Term loans 3 1,1187 11187 - -
Unconvertible redeemable unsecured foan stocks 31 374 * - -
Al Murabahah Medium Term Notes a 1,0000 9868 1,000.0 986 8

n/a - Not applicable

* it is not practicable within the constraints of imeliness and costs 0 estimate the fair value of the Group's and Company's nor-current
net Investrment in finance leases, unguated shares and unconvertible redeemable unsecured loan stocks
*= |t is not practicable to estimate the fair vailie of amounts due from subsidiaries due principally to a lack of fixed repayment terms
entered into by the parties involved and withaut incurring excessive costs
#%+ |t |5 not practicabie 1o estimate the fair vaitie of the Group's unquoted shares because of the lack of quoted market prices and the

Inability to estimate fair value without Incurring excessive costs.
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44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

{e) Fair value (continued)

‘The nominal/notional amount and net fair value of financial instruments not recognised in the balance sheet of the Group as at the end of the

year were as foliows:

Group cCompany
Nominal/ Nominal/
netional Net fair notional Net fair
2007 amount vaiue amount Value
Contingent fisbilities 2,322.9 Fkkk 1,109.5 dedkek
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2,606.3 49.9 5.5 -
Interest rate swaps 795.1 7.9 - -
Group Company
Norminai/ Nominal/
notionat Net fair notonai Net fair
2008 amount vatue amount Value
Contingent dabilities 1,775 8 Fkwk 8991 *hidk
Forward foreign exchange conwacts 1,905.8 &9 58 -
interest rate swaps 1,0332 281 - -

*+%x |t jg not practicable to estimate the fair value of contingent liabilities refiably due to the uncertainties of timing, costs and eventuat

outcome
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45 COMPARATIVE FIGURES - GROUP

As stated in Note 2 of the principal accounting policies, the Group's comparative figures have been restated to conform to the new presentation
and poficias following the adaption of the naw and revised accounting standards as follows:

{a) 'ncome statement reflecting effect of FRS

As previousiy As
stated FRS 101 FRS 121 restated
Revenue 20,1621 - - 20,1621
Operating expenses {18,838 5} - - {18,838 5)
Other operating incarme 258.4 - 16 240.2
Operating profit 15822 - 16 1,583.8
Share of results of jointly contralled entities 15 - - 15
Share of results of associates 908 on - 81.1
Profit before interest 1,6745 @7 16 1,665 4
investment and interest income 895 - - 895
Finance costs (121.8} - - (121.8}
Profit before taxation 1,642 2 e 16 1,634 1
Taxation (439 1) 97 (05) 429.5)
Net profit for the year 1,203.1 - 1.1 1,204.2
Attributable fo:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company 11206 - 08 11214
Minorlty shareholders 825 - 03 82.8
Net profit for the year 1,203.1 - 11 1,204 2
Basic EPS 461 - - 461
Diluted EPS 460 - - 460
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45

COMPARATIVE FIGURES - GROUP (continued)

{h} Balance sheets reflecting effect of FRS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and eguipment

Investment properties

Blological assets

Land heid for property development

interests in jolntly controlled
entities

Investments in associates

Investments

Goodwill on consolidation

Intangible assets

Prepaid jease rentats

Deferred tax assets

Finance lease receivables

CURRENT ASSETS

inventories

Property development costs

Trade end other receivables

Frepaymert

Tax recoverable

Cash held under Housing
Development Accounts

Barik balances, deposits and cash

Non-current assets held for sale
TOTAL ASSETS

Share capital

Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE
TO CRDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

Minority Interests

TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
toans and financing
peferred tax labilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Short term borrowings
Current taxation

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

As
previcusly As
stated FRS § FRS 101 FRS 117 ERS 121 restated
4,655 6 (129 (440 3) (660 1) - 35423
- - 1846 - - 1846
- - 2557 - 2557
2625 (339 - - - 2286
11 - - - - 11
§45.2 - - - - 5452
3484 - - - - 3484
30 - - - - 30
685 - - - - 685
- - - 6506 - 6506
3649 - - - 07 3642
454.1 - - - - 454.1
46,7033 {46 8) - (9.5) ©7 6,6463
33813 - - - - 3,3813
787 3 - - - - 7873
3,207 5 - - - 23 3,209 8
1111 - 95 - 1206
1349 - - - 1349
2802 - - - - 2802
2,932.2 - - - - 2,932.2
10,834.5 - - 95 23 10,846.3
- 468 - - - 468
17,537.8 - - - 16 17,539 4
14,2328 - - - - 1,2328
75710 - - - 1.3 7,5723
8,803 8 - - - 13 8,805 1
. 590.2 - - - 03 990.5
9,794.0 - - - 1.6 9,795.6
2,0832 - - - - 2,0832
234.8 - - - 234.8
2,318.0 - - - - 2,318.0
37946 - - - - 37946
130 1 - - - 130.1
1,256 6 - - ~ - 1,256.6
2048 - - - - 2445
5,425.8 - - - - 5,425.8
77438 - - - - 77438
17,537 8 - - - 16 17,5394
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45 COMPARATIVE FIGURES - GROUP {continued)

{c} cash flow reflecting effect of FRS

As
previously FRS As

stated impact restated
Net profit for the year 1,203 1 11 1,204 2
Adjustments for .
unusual itemns 78 - 78
share of profits tess losses of jointly controlied entities and associates ©23 97 {82 4)
Investment income {i0.8 - (10.8)
Interest income 787) - 787
Finance costs 1218 - 1218
Depraciation and amortisation 3761 %8 3663
Amortisation of prepaid lease rentals - 38 9.8
Taxation 4391 %2 4299
Other non-cash items {25.00 - {25 0}

1,941 1 16 1,9427
Changes in working capital:
Inventaries {153 4) - (153 4)
Property development costs 438 - 438
Trade and other receivables and prepayment {4437 {16 {4453
Cash heid under Housing Development ACCOUNtS 1295 - 1295
Trade and other payables and provisions 303 - 303
Cash generated from operations 1,547 & - 1,547 &
Tax paid (455.2) - {455 2)
Dividends from associates &7.4 - &7.4
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,159.8 - 1,159 8
Net cash outflow from investing activities (see below) (581 %) - (581 %)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 194.6 - 194.6
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents 7729 - 7729
Foreign exchange differences (59 - (59
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,153 4 - 21534
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of the year 2,920 4 - 29204
Net cash outflow from investing activities reflecting effect of FRS

As
previousty FRS As

stated impact restated
purchase of property, plant and equipment (738 2) a4 (698 8)
Purchase of investment properties - 22 22
Purchase of prepald lease rentals - {829) (3z9)
Cost incurred on biplogical assets - 43) 43
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipmeant 1812 (225} 1587
Proceeds from sale of investment propertles - 21.0 210
Proceeds from sale of prepald lease rentals - 15 15
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46 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Corporate proposals completed after 30th June 2007

On $th July 2007, Sime Darby Heng Kong Limited acguired the remaining 30% equity interest in Wastminster Trave! Limited ("'WTL") for HKE B6 9
miliion pursuant to the exercise of a put option by the minority shareholder of WL

Corporate proposals announced but not completed as at 28th August 2007

{a) On 27th November 2004, Sime Darby Berhad ("SDB") received an offer from Synergy Drive gerhad (“Synergy Drive”} to acquire the entire
business and undertaking of the Company, including #s assets and liabilities at & consideration equivalent to RMS 46 per ordinary share of
RM0.50 each, to be satisfied by the Issuance of an eguivalent value of Series A Redeemabie Convertible Preference Shares ("RCPS A"} of
Synergy Drive at an issue price of RMS 25 per share {"Proposed Disposal”)

On 21st Decamber 2006, the Board of SDB accepted the offer from Synergy Drive

3D8 proposes to carry out a Proposed Capital Repayment upon completion of the Proposed Disposal to return aff the RCPS A recelved or
receivable by SDB to the shareholders of SD8. Simuitaneously with the Proposed Capital Repayment, the Cormpany will undertake the
Proposed Share Issue of 2 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each or such numiber of new SDB shares at par value in order for Synergy Drive
to maintain not less than 90% shiareholding interest in SDB.

The apprevals to carry out the Proposed Disposal, Proposed Capita! Repayment and Proposed Share Issue were obtained from the $C and
SC {on behalf of the Foreign Investment Committee) on 16th July 2007 and the sharehoicers of SDB, at an Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 17th August 2007 The proposals are pending the approval of the following :

fiy Confirmation of the High Court of Malaya;
{iy Lenders of SDB (where applicaile); and
(i) Any other authorities or parties, if required

(5)  On 25th May 2007, Sime Darby Singapore Limited ("SDSL") and Orchard Nominees Private Umited entered into a Sale and Purchase
Agreement with Thai Contalniers Group Company Limited {'TCG"} for the disposal of their entire interest In the issued and paid-up share
capital of Sime Rengo Packaging Singapore Limited to TCG The completion of the disposal is conditional upon, amongst others, the
approval of regulatory authorities.

) On9th August 2007, Sime Travel Holdings Limited entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with Wealthy Aim nvestments Limited {"WAIL")
and SBI E2-Capital Limited (as guarantor for WAIL for the disposal of its entire equity interest in Westminster Travel Limited ("WTL"} to WAIL
for a total cash consideration of HKE 161.0 milion. The completion of the dispesal is conditional upon, amongst others, the approvals of the
Registrar of Travel Agents and the Trade Industry Councit of Hong Korg.
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Name of Company

PLANTATIONS

Consclidated Plantations Berhad

Kempas Edible Cil Sendirian Berhad

¥wang loo Seng (Malaysia) Private
Lirmited

Morakot industries Public Company
Limited

PNB Enterprise Sdn Bhd
PT Sime indo Agro

Sime Darby Americas Limited

Sime Darby Edible Products Limited

Sime Darby Futures Trading Scn 8hd

Sima Darby Technology Centre Sdn
Bhd

Sime Farms Sdn 8hd

Sirne-Morakot Holdings (Thailand)
Limited

Sime Plantaticns Sdn Bhd
The China £ngineers (Thailand) timited

PROPERTY
Alexangra Properties Limited

Alor Setia Sdn Bhd

Amston Properties Private Limited
Aquita Development Private Limited
Artesian Investrnents Pte Lid
Bhuefields investments Pte 1id
Brunsfield Fmbassyview Sdn Bhd
Caring Skyline Sdn Bhd

China Property Development
{Hoidings) Limited

Citrus Grove Properties Private Limited

Constant Skyline San Bhd

CPB Properties Sdn 8hd

Principal activities

Invastment holding

Palm oil refining and fractionation; and manufaciusing

and marketing of specialty and end user fais

Royalty incomne from company's trade marks and rental

incorme

Manufacture and marketing of cooking oil

Cattle rearing husiness
Oil palmn cuttivation

Investment hotding

Refining, manufacturing and marketing of edible oiis

and palm oil refated products and surfactant
Commaodity trading

Research and development

Agriculture related business

Investment holding

Oil palm cuitivation and palm oll production

Investment hoiding

Property management and investment
Property investment holding

investnent holding and property investrnent
Praperty development and investrnent
Property development and investmant
Property development and invesiment
property and project management

Froperty development and management

Investment holding

property investment and management of sesvice

residences
Property development and management

praperty management and related activities
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Country of
incorporation/
Principal place
of Business

Malaysia

Malaysia

Singapore

Thaiiand

Malaysia
Indonesia

United States
of America

Singapore

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

Thailand

Malaysia

Thatland

Singapore
Malaysia
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Maiaysia
Malaysia

Cayman islands
Singapore

Malaysia

Malaysia

Group's

effective
interest (%)
2007 2006

1060

1000

000

999

A250
1000

1060

1000

1000

10048

000

1000

1000

999

1060
1000
1000
1000
~MPO
AB90
A300
1000

N304

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

999

1000

oo

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

999

1000
1000
1000
000
A0
AS O
A360
1000

n304

1060

1000

1000

Auditors



SIME DARBY BERHAD

company No.
41759 M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contintied)
47 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company Principal activities Country of Group's Auditors
incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%}
of Busihess 2007 2006
Dunearn Properties timited Property management and investment Singapore 1000 1000 2
Ecopuri Sdn Bhd investmant holding Malaysia 008 1000 1
Goifhome Development Sdn Bhd Property investment Malaysia 1000 000 H
Golftek Davelopment Sdn Bhd Property investment Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Green East Prime ventures, inc Property realty and land ownership Philippines 632 832 3
Ironwood Development Sdn Bhd Property investment Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Kuala Lumnpur Goif & Cauntry Club Provision of golfing, sporting and other recreational Malaysia W00 1000 1
Berhad activities and services as well as property development
Lengkap Teratai Sdn Bhd Property investment and development Mataysia 812 512 1
Malaysian ice Berhad Property investment Malaysia 000 1000 i
North Road Properties Sendirian Property investment Malaysia oo 1000 1
Berhad
Oyster Cove Internationat Pty Lid Property development Australia 420 - 2
Oyster Cove Properties Piy Lid Froperty investment Australia 420 - 2
QC| Management Pty Lid Provision of security and landcare services Austratia 420 - 2
Pinar Baiduri Sdn Bhd Property investment Malaysia 1000 1000 i
Prominent Acres Sdn Bhd Property investment, development and plantation Malaysia 756 756 1
PT Bhumyamca Sekawan tight industrial and commaercial property investment indonesia A0 M0 2
and management
Puri Bahagia Sdn Bhd Property investment Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Rangdaong Orange Court Limited Property investment and management of service Vietnam 650 650 2
residences
RRW Management Sdn 8hd General insurance and trading Malaysia 512 5812 1
shaw Brothars (M) Sdn 8hd Property and investment holding Malaysia Al84 MB4 ]
Siltown Realty Philippines, inc Investment holding Philippines A395 M35 3
Silvertown Property Development Leasing of properties Philippines 987 987 3
Corporation
Sime Allied Properties Limited Investment holding Singapore 1000 1000 2
Sime Darby Australia Limited investment holding. service apartrment operations and  Australia 1060 000 2
management
sime Darby Brunsfield Australia Pte Lt Proparty davelopment aritish virgin 600 - 2
Sirg:ra] garby grunsfield Damansara Sdn Properly development ﬁglg?fgia 600 . 1
Sirg?1 clj:)arby Brunsfield Darby Hills Sdn Property development Malaysia 600 - 1
Sime Darby Brunsfield Holdings Limited  Investment holding Hong Kong 1000 - 4

{formerly knowrn as Sime Darby
Brunsfieid China Fle Lid)
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Name of Company principal activities Country of Group's Auditors
incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%)
of Business 2007 2006
Sime Darby Brunsfield Holding Sdn Bhd  Property development and investment nolding  Malaysia &30 600 1
Sime Darby Brunsfield Kenny Hills Sdn Property development Malaysia 600 - 1
Bhd
Sime Darby Brunsfigit Motorwerid Sdn Property deveiopment Malaysia 600 - 1
Bhd
Sime Darby Brunsfield Project Project management services Malaysia 600 - i
Managerment Sdn Bhd
Sirne Darby Brunsfield Properties investment holding Malaysia 400 - 1
Holding Sdn Bhd
Sime Darby Brunsfield Property Property management services Maiaysia &00 - 1
Management Sdn Bhd
Sirme Darby Brunsfield Resort Sdn Bhd  Property development and investment Malaysia 800 - ]
Sime Darby Brunsfield Resources Sdn Property development and investment holding  Malaysta &0 0 - 1
Bhd
Sime Darby Brunsfield Taipan City Sdn  Property development Malaysia 600 - i
8hd
Sime Darby General Trading Sdn Bhd  Properiy investment Mataysia 1000 000 1
Sime Darby Hotels Pty Ld Operations of service apartments Australia 060 000 2
sime Darby Industrial Properties Sdn Property investment Malaysia 1000 1000 i
Bhd
Sime Darby Land Sdn 8hd Property deveiopment and management, Malaysia oo 1060 1
proiect management, property investment and
plantations businass
sime Darby London Limited Investment holding United Kingdom 1000 1000 2
Sime Darby Malaysia Berhad investment holding and holding of trademarks  Malaysia 1006 1000 1
Sime Darby Filipinas, Inc Distribution and servicing of Ford New Holland  Philippines 987 987 3

and Fiat agricultural machinery, Kamol
agricultural equipment, general trading and

leasing
Sime Darby Property Development Sdn  Property investment Malaysia 1600 1000 ]
Berhad
Sime Darby‘ReaIty Development Property development Phitippines 987 987 3
Comporation
Sime Darby Resorts Pty Ltd management of a resort Alstratia 1000 1000 2
Sirme Darby Resort Sdn Bhd Properiy development Malaysia 000 - 1
Sime Darby Singapare Limited Invastment holding and property management  Singapore 1000 1600 2
Sime Darhy Urus Harta Berhad Property services and management Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Sime Footwear (Melaka) Sdn Bhd Property investment Mataysia 1000 1000 1
Sime Hartanah Sdn 8hd investment holding Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Sirme Management Services Limited Property management services United Kingdom 000 1000 2
Sime Pilmoor Development Sdn Bhd Property investment and development Malaysia 1000 600 1
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Name of Company

Sime Properties {vistnam) Private
Limited

Sime Properties International Private
Limited

Sime Property Holdings Sendirian
Berhad

Sime UEP Brunsfield Properties Sdn
Bhd

Sime UEP Building Management
Services Sdn Bhd

Sime UEP Centre Sdn 8hd

Sime UEP Development Sdn 8hd

Sime UEP Executive Suites Sdn Bhd
Sime UgP Heights Sdn Bhd

Sime UEP Homes Sdh 8hd

Sime UEP Industrial Park Sdn Bhd
Sime UEP (fohor) $dn Bhd

Sime UEP Lembah Acch Sdn 8hd
Sime UEP Properties Berhad

Sime Way 5dn Bhd

Sime Wood Industries Sdn 8hd
Singapore Properties Limited
Solarvest Sdn Bhd

Stableford Development Sdn Bhd
Sungei Way Development Berhad
Syarikat Matacca Straits inn Sdn Bhd
UEP Construction Sdn Bhd

Wisma Sime Darby Sdn Berhad

HEAVY EQUIPMENT

Austchrome Pty Lid

Caltrac SAS

Caterpillar Financial Services Malaysia
Sdn Bhd

CiCA Limited

Principal activities

Investment holding and management of serviced
residence

Property invesiment and management of serviced
apartments

Property investment

Property davelopment and investment

Property management

Property investment and development

Properiy investment. construction and
development

Property investment and management
Property investment and development
Property investment and development
Property investment and development
Property investment and development
Property investment and ptantation
Investment hokiing and rmanagement
Investrient holding

Property investment

Property investment and development
Investment holding

Property investment

Property investment

Hotel ownership

Property investment

Property management and related services

Chroming ard hydraulic repairs

Sates of equipment and spare parts and service
support for Caterpillar business

Hire purchase and leasing finance in support of
sales of equipment

Distribution, sales and maintenance of irucks,
dritling equipment and compressors
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Country of
incorporation/
Principal place
of Business

Singapore

Singapore

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

Maiaysia

Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysla
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia
Singapore
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia

Malaysia

Australia

New Caledonia

Malaysia

Channel Islands

Group's
effective
interest (%)
2007 2006
1600 1000
756 756
1000 106G
565 565
512 512
756 756
512 512
658 658
512 512
51.2 512
572 512
512 512
512 512
512 512
W00 1000
1000 1000
100.0 1000
1006 1000
1000 1000
512 512
550 850
512 512
1000 1000
1000 1000
100.0 1000
AOG AOS
708 7060

Auditors
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Name of Company principal activities Country of Group's Auditors
incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%)
of Business 2007 2006

CiCA Vietnam Limited Provision of consultancy and services in connection  Vietnam 706 - 2

with instaliaticn, operation, repair and maintenance
of industrial machines, equipment and engine

vehicles
Columbia Chrome {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd  Manufacturing, re-manufaciuring, repair and Malaysia 100 1000 1
senvicing of engine products, electroplating and
chroming activities
Energy Power Systems Australia Pty Sale of Caterpillar engines Australia AZDD  AZ00 2
Ltd
FG Wiisen Asia Pte Ltd Sale and servicing of diese} generator sets Singapore ASO0 NS00 2
Foshan Shunde CEL Mathinery Selling of Caterpillar heavy construction equipmeni,  China 1000 000 z
Company Limited etectricity generator sets, engines and spare paris;
provision of maintenance service; equipment rental;
project co-grdination and engineering for
installation of mechanical and electrical equipments
Hastings Deering (Australia) Lid Sales of equipment and spare parts and service Australia 000 1000 2
support for Catergillar husiness
Hastings Deering {PNG) Limited Sales of equipment and spare parts and service Papua New 1000 1000 2
support for Caterpillar business Guinea
Hastings Deering (Solomgon tsands) Sales of equipment and spare pasts and service Solomon Islands 000 1066 2
Limited support for Caterpitlar business
Kiong Yu Realty Sdn 8hd Property holding Mataysia 00 1000 i
Macau CEL Machinery Company Sales of enginearing machinery, electricity Macau 1000 - 4
Limited generating sets, engines and refated pants,
provision of after-sales and rental services of the
said products, organising construction projects and
provision of instaliation services for electrical and
mechanical equipment
Otofin Sdn Bhd sale and marketing of generators, agricultural and  Mataysia 750 750 1
industrial machinary
Otofin industries Sdn Bhd Manufacturing and assembly of generators. Malaysia 750 750 i
agricultural ard industrial machinery
Sirme Darby Industries, Inc Genegral frading Philippines 987 987 3
Sime Kubota 5dn Bhd Assembly and distribution of Kubota range of Malaysia 300 900 1
agricuiural machinery and other machinery and
equipment
Terberg Tractors Malaysia Sdn Bhd Marketing, distributing, seling and servicing Terberg  Malaysia 500 500 1
terminal fractors
The China Engineers (BVI) Limited investment holding British Virgin 100 1000 2
Istands
The China Engineers, Limitad selling of Caterpiliar heavy construction equipment,  Hong Kong 000 1000 A
electricity generator sets, engines and spare paris;
provision of maintenance service; equipment rental;
project co-ordination and engineering for
instattation of machanical ang electrical equipments
The China Engineers {South China} nvestiment hoiding Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Limited
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Name of Company principal activities Country of Group's Auditors
incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%)
of Business 2007 2006
TMA-Joy Industries Asia Patific Sdn Desigring and manufactusing of heat exchangers, Maiaysia 550 850 1
8hd radiators, process equipment moduies, filters and
separators
Tractors (B) Sén Bhd Assembly, marketing and distribution of agriculturat  Brunei 708 700 2
and industrial equipmeant
Tractors Machinery internationat Pte Sale & service of new and used earth moving Singapore 0o 1000 2
Ltd construction and related heavy equipment and spare
parts
Tractors Malaysia Enterprise Sdn Bhd  investment hoiding Maiaysia 1000 1000 1
Tractors Malaysia {1982) Sdn Bhd Sale of equipment, spare pars and service support Malaysia 1060 000 1

for Caterpillar business, distribution of forklifts, other
material handiing equipment and industrial cleaners,
and supply and installetion of Kawasaki co-generation

systems
Tractors Malaysia Holdings Berhad investrment holding and provision of management and  Malaysia 000 1000 1
ancillary senvices
Tractors Malaysia (Hong Kong) Limited  Investment holding Hong Kong 1000 1000 Z
Tractors Malaysia Motor Holdings $dn Investment holding Malaysia 10060 000 i
Bhd
Tractors Malaysia Power Systems Sdn  Packaging of Caterpiliar generator sets Malaysia 00 1000 1
Bhd
Tractors Malaysia Rebuild Sdn Bhd Reconditioning of used equipment and machinery Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Tractors Malaysia Training and Provision of training Mataysia 1000 1000 1
Development Cenire S$tn Bhd
Tractors Manufacturing & Assermbly Manufacturing and assembly of tractor implerments Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Sdn 8hd and tractor parts and other products
Tractors Material Handling Scn Bhd Sale and distribution of lift trucks and spare parts, and  Malaysia 1000 1000 i
the rental and servicing of other material handling
equipment
Tractors Petroleumn Services Sdn 8hd  Supnly, repair and maintenance of Caterpillar engines  Malaysia 1000 1000 1
and other eguipment for the ¢il and gas industry
Tracteors Singapore Holdings Pte Ltd nvestment holding Singapore 1006 1000 2
Tractors Singapore Limited Sale, rental, service & assembly of earthmoving and ~ Singapore 1000 1000 2
construction equipment and related heavy equipment
and spare parts
Xiamen CEL HeawyEquipment Selling of Caterpillar heavy construction equipment,  China 1000 1000 2
Company Limited glectricity generator sets, engines and spare parts;

provision of maintenarce service; equipment rental;
project co-ordination and engineering for installation
of mechanical and electrical equipment

Xiamen Sime Darby CEL Machinery Co  Selling of Caterpiflar heavy construction equipmeni,  China 1000 1000 2
Lid electricity generaior sets, engines and spare paris,
provision of maintenance service; equipment rental;
project co-ardination and englreering for installation
of mechanicat and electrical equipment

Xinjiang Sime Darby Heavy Equipment  Production, display and sales of heavy equipment; China 160.0 - 4
Coltd provision of after-sale services
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Name of Company Principal activities Country of Group's Auditors
incorporation/ effective
Principal of interest (%)
Business 2007 2006

MOTOR VEHICLES

Associated Motor Industries Malaysia  Assembly of moter vehicles Mataysia 510 510 1
Sdn Bhd
Auto Bavaria Sdn Bhd Investment holding Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Auto Technology Engineering Distribution for Denso Diesel injection pump and Hong Kong oo 1000 2
Company Limited provision of after sales services
AutoFrance China Limited pistribution and deatership of Peugeot motor vehicles  Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Autorrance Hong Kong Limited Cistributor and dealer of Peugeot motar vehicles Hong Kong 1000 W00 2
Bluewater Marire Limited Investment holding British virgin 00 1000 4
Islands
BMW Concessionaires {HK) Limited Distributor and deater for BMW rmotor vehicles, Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
provision of after-sale maintenance services and
invesiment holding
BMW Concessionaires (Macau} Limited  Agent for sales, service and parts for 8MW maotor Macau 1000 1000 2
vehicles
8MW Malaysia San Bhd Sale and distribution of motor vehicles and Malaysia @0 Paon 3
motarcycles; and lease of tooling equipment
Bow Ma Motors (South China) Lid Investment holding Heng Kong 1000 1000 2
CEC Finance Limited Hire purchase and lease financing Hong Kong MGG AP0 3
Continental Car Services Limited Motor dealership New Zealand 000 1000 2
Fordg Malaysia Sdn Bhd lmport and distribution of Ford motor vehicles and Malaysia 510 510 ]
spare parts
Goodwood Motors Limited Distributor and dealer of Rolls-Royce motor vehicles  Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Guangdong Deda Bow Ma Motor Repair, maintenarice and inspection of motor vehicies  China 65 0 650 2
Service Colid and motorcycles; purchase of motor vehicle and

motorcycle spare parts and accessories; consultancy
services for technica! inguiries and repair of motor
vehicies and motorcycles; repair skills for motor
vehicie and miotorcycle maintenance and repalr;
exhibiticn of new motor vehicles and new
motorcycles (which vehicles shali not be directly
imported and soid by the company}

Hainan Bao Yue Automobiles Trading  Sales of motor vehicles @ncluding smalt car), salesof  China 000 1000 2
Co Ltd brand sedan, sales of motorcycles and parts,
provision of after-sales services and consultancy
services
Hainan Dejie Motors Limited Provision of afier-sales services for vehicies; selling China 1000 1000 2

spare parts of vehicles; display vehicles and
motorcycles at the business premises; provide training
for vehicie technicians and relevant consuitation,
management and other sepvices

Marper Engineering (Macau) Limited wotor vehicies sales and aftersales services Macau 1000 1000

Hino Distributors N2 Limited Sale of new heavy Hino trucks and used heavy trucks  New Zealand 1000 1006 2
of all makes and models

Hyundai-Sime Darby Berhad investment holding and provision of management Malaysia 1000 996 1
services
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Name of Company Principal activities Country of Group's Auditors
incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%}
of Business 2007 2006
Hyundai-Sime Darby viotors 5dn Bhd  Sales and distribution of passenger and light Malaysia 00 996 1

commercial vehicles, provision of after sales services
and selling and distribution of spare parts for its
products range

Hyumal Motor Sdn 8hd Investment holding, importation and distribution of Maiaysia 510 510 1
certain Hyundal vehicles

Hyumal Trading Sdn Bhd Saies of certain Hyundai and Inokom vehicles, Malaysia 510 510 1
provision of after sales services and related spare
parts

Infinity Automotive Limited Retaliing of new and used passenger cars and light Mew Zeatand 1000 1000 2

commercial vehicles, spare parts and accessories
and the provision of related services

island Motors Limited Distributor and dealer of Suzuki motor vehicles Hong Kong 1000 000 2
Inokom Corporation Sdn 8hd Manufacture and assembly of light commercial and Malaysia 535 535 H
nassenger vehicles, and contract assembly of motor
vehicies
tand Rover {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd import and distribution of Land Rover motor vehicles  Malaysia &0 600 1

and spare parts

Motor Truck Distributors (NZ) Limited Sale of new heavy Mack and Renault trucks and used  New Zealand 1000 1000 2
heavy trucks of all makes and models

Neville Motors Limited Retailing of new and used passenger cars and light New Zealand 000 1000 2
commercial vehicles, spare parts and accessories
and the provision of related services

North Shore Motor Holdings Limited Motor vehicle deater New Zealand 1000 1000 2
Crientai-Hyundai Sdn Bhd Distribution of motor vehicies Malaysia AZ04  A204 3
Parts Link Trading Company Limited whclesaler of motor vehicles parts and accessories Hong Kong woo 1000 2
Performance Motors Limited Motor deatership Singapore 1000 1000 2
Performance Motors {Thailland) Limited  Motor dealership Thailand 1060 1000 3
Performance Premium Selection Retailer, wholesater and exporter of usad car Singapore &G0 600 2
Limited
Perry's Automotive Group (North wholesaling and retailing of new and used passenger New Zealand 000 1000 2
Shore} Limited cars and light commercial vehicies, spare parts and
accassories and the provision of related services
SDHK Group Company Limited Investmary holding Bermuda 1060 1000 2
Shanghai Simewinner Automobile Motor vehicles distributor and dealer China 4500 600 2
Trading Company Limited
Shanghai Xin Biao Xian Motor Sales of imported Roils-Royce Motor Cars, which is China W0oo - 4
Commerce Company Limited the genaral distributor of Rolis-Royce Motor Cars in
China under the authorisation of BMW China
Automptive Trading Co Ltd
Shantou Dehang Bow Ma Motors To provide maintenance repairing, upkeepingandto  China 600 600 2
Company Limited disptay vehicies and motorcycies and to provide

management and technical consultation services
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Name of Company principal activitles Country of Group's Auditors
Incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%)
of Business 2007 2006
shenzhen Bow Chuang Vehicle Trading  Retall of brand automobiies manufactured by BMW China 1000 1000 2
Company Umited Briliance Automotive Ltd and releted spare parts,

provision of after-sales services and provision of
management consuiltancy services on automobile

sales
Shenzhen Sime Darby Motor Maotor vehicles maintenance and repair; inspection China 700 700 2
Enterprises Co Lid and testing of motor vehicles, consultancy services
SimeCradit (Malaysia) Sdn 8hd Hire purchase financing Malaysia - 1000 1
Sime Darby Auto Imports Sdn Bhd importer of BMW and MIN§ vehicles Maiaysia 1000 1000 1
Sime Darby Auto Ikalia Sdn Bhd Distribution of Alfa Romeo vehicles and spare parts Malaysia 000 1000 !
and provision of after sales service
Sime Darby Automobites Malaysia Sdn Retail of motor vehicles and spare parts and provision  Malaysia 1000 1000 1
and (farmerly kriown as Ford of after sales services
Concessionaires San Ehd)
Sime Darby Automobiles NZ Limited motor distribution New Zealand 1000 1000 2
Sime Darby Automiobiles Pty Lid import, distributicn, wholesale and sale of Peugeot Australia 000 1000 2
motor vehicles and parts in Australia
Sime Darby Management Services Provision of intra-group managemeant services and Hong Kong 060 1000 b
Limited property holding
Sime Darby Mazda {Thailand) Limited Motor dealership Thailand 000 1000 3
Sime Datby Mitsu (Thailand) Limited Retail sale and service of Mitsubishi motor vehicles Thailand 1000 1000 3
Sime Darby Motor Division Sdn Bhd Provision of management services and retail of BMW  Malaysia 000 1000 i
and MINI vehictes
Sime Darby Motor Group {Australia) Pty Investrnent holding Austratia 1000 1000 2
Limited
Sime Darby Motor Group (HR) Umited  Investment holding Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Sime Darby Motar Group (NZ) Limited  Investment holding New Zealand 000 1600 2
Sime Darby Motor Group (PRC) Limited  Investment holding Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Sime Darby Motor Group (Singapore) Investment holding Singapore 1000 1000 2
Limited
Sime Darby Motor Holdings Limited Investment holding Singapore 1000 1000 2
Sime Datby Motors Sdn Bhd frvestment holding Maiaysia 000 W00 1
Sime Darby Motor Services Limited Distribution of Ford motor vehicies and provision of Hong Kang 1000 1000 2
afier sales services for motor vehicles
Sime Darby Motors {Nissan China} Investrrent holding Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Holdings Limited
Sime Darby Regent Motors Limited Maotor dealership Thailand 100.0 - 3
Sime Darby Rent-A-Car Sdn Bhd Vehicle Rentat Malaysia 100G 1000 1
Sime Darby Services Private Limited vehicie Renta Singapore 000 1000 i
Sime Darby System integrators Sén {nvestment holding Malaysia 1000 994 1
Bhd
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Sime Darby (Thailand) Limited investment holding Thailand 1000 1000 3
Simel.ease (Mataysia} Sdn Bhd Lease financing Malaysia - 1000 1
Sime Singapore Limited investment holding and the provision of managament  Singapore 1000 000 2
and anciilary services
Sime Winner Holdings Limited Investment holding and motor vehicles distributor Hong Kang 600 400 2
and dealer
Simewinner Missan Autocrafts Limited  Investment holding and motor vehicies distributor Hang Kong 400 00 2
and dealer
South Perth Investments Pty Lid Vehicle rental and related mechanical services Australia 1000 W00 P
Truck Investments Limited investment holding and financing of vehicles New Zealand 1000 1000 2
Truck Stops {NZ} Limited Provision of spare pasts and services for medium and  New Zealand W00 1000 2
heavy trucks and repair and servicing of frucks
trailers
UD Truck Distributors (NZ) Limited Nissan diesel truck distributor and retailer New Zealand 1000 1000 2
Uniparts Limited Sale of motor vehicle spare parts Hong Kong 068 100 2
Universal Cars {Importers} Limited Distribution and dealership of Mitsubishi motor Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
vehicies
Universal Cars Limited pistribugion and dealership of Mitsubishd motor Heng Kong 000 1000 2
vehicles
vermont International Limited investment holding Hong kong 00 &30 2
Vantage Automotive Limited Motor dealership Singapare 1060 W00 2
viking Motors Limited Dealer for Volvo motor vehicles Thaiiand 1000 1000 3
wallace Harper & Company, Limited investment holding Hong Kang W00 1000 2
Warwick Motors Limited Distribution and dealer for Land Rover motor vehicles  Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Yunnan Bow Yue Vehicle Trading Retailing of branded automobiles manufactured by China 1000 - 2
Company Limited BMW Brilliance Automotives Lid and related spare
parts, and the provision of after-sales services and
management consutting services on automaobiles
sales
Yunnan Dekai Bow Ma Motors To provide maintenance repalring, upkeeping to China 650 650 2
Technoiogy & Service Co Ltd display vehicles and motorcycles at its business
premises and to provide consultation and
management services
Yunnan Sime Winner Motor Services Operation of motor vehicie service centres China - 960 z

Co, Limited
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47 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company Principal activities Country of Grotip's Auditors
incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%)
of Business 2007 2006

ENERGY & UTILITIES

Alria fava Marine (S) Pte Ltd Shipowning, shipchartering and shipmanagement Singapore - AZ94 3
Batamindo Carriers Pte Ltd Ship and boat chartering services Singapore - AID3 3
Chubb Malaysia Sendirian Serhad Marnufacture, marketing, installation and servicing of  Malaysia 490 420 !
security products
Chubb Singapcre Private Limited Marketing of security and fire protection products and  Singapore AZD0  ~300 z
services
Chubb-Special Fire Hazards Protection  Provision of fire protection and alarm systems and Singapore AIDD A300 2
Pte Lid S@IViCes
DMS java Marine Wi L Shipowning and shipchartering Qatar - A4A 3
Janatrus PDP Sdn Bhd Provision of operating and maintenance services for ~ Malaysia 1004 1000 1
an independent power producer
lava Marine Lines Pte Ltd Shipowning and shipchartering Singapore - A294 3
Jaya Century Pte Lid Shipowning and shipcharteting Singapore - N394 3
laya Container Lines Pte Ltd Shipowning and shipchartering Singapora - A284 3
Jaya DMS Marine Pie Ltd Shipowning and shipchartering Singapore - MAa7 2
Jaya Holdings Limited # Investment holding Singapore - AZ294 3
jaya International Transport Pte Lid Shipowning and shipchartering Singapore - A2D4 3
iaya Offshore Pte tid Shipchartering and shipmanagement Singapore - A294 3
Jaya Shipbuilding and Engineering ownearship of shipyard and the building and repairing  Singapore - AZ94 3
Private Limited of ships
Jaya-TDS Shipping Lid Shipowning and shipchartering Mauritius - MAa7 3
Laem Chabang Power Co Limited Independent power producer Thailand 1060 1000 3
Marksworth Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Maiaysia - China Hydro koint Venture Engineering, procurement and construction work Malaysia 250 250 1
Malaysian Oriental Holdings Berhad Investment holding Malaysia 700 700 1
Mecomb Malaysia Sdn Berhad sales and services of industrial, mechanical, electrical  Malaysla 700 700 1

and instrumentation products, computer products
and systerns and design and consuitancy of air-
conditioning systems

Meacom) Singapore Limited Manufacture and instailation of industrial equipment  Singapare 700 700 2
and the import and sale of technical and scientific
instruments, mechanical, electrical and electric

equipment and
components
Mecomb (Thatland) Limited Sale of industrial, mechanical, electrical and Thailand 1000 700 2
glectronic products
Pesida Equipment Sdn Bhd investment holding Malaysia 1000 1000 1
port Dickson Power Berhad independent power producer Malaysia 750 750 1
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47 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company Principal activities Auditors
Country of Group's
incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%)
of Business 2007 2006

PT Sime Darby Offshore Engineering Importation, distribution and leasing of engineering iIndonesia 700 700 2

products

PT Jaya Asiatic Shipyard . Ownership of shipyard and the building and repairing  indonesia - AZ79 3

of ships

Sanergy Jaya Marine Pie Ltd Shipowning, shipchartering and ship management Singapore - Maz 3

Sime Darby Brunsfleld Engineering Sdn  Procurement, design and execution of engingaring Malaysia 600 600 1

shd contracts

Sime Darby Energy & Utllities Sdn Bhd  invastment holding Malaysia 1000 1000 1

Sime Darby Engineering Sdn Bhd Engineering, fabrication and construction relating to Mataysia 790 790 1

the oil and gas indusiry

sime Darby Offshore Engineering Sdn  Operations and maintenance, products and systems  Malaysia 700 700 1

Bhd integration, hook-up and commissioning, plant
madification and minor fabrication works

Sime Darby Qil & Gas Sdn Bhd investment holding Malaysia 700 700 1

Simne Darby Overseas (HK) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 1000 - 4

Sime Darby Petroleum Sdn 8hd 0il and gas exploratiocn vialaysia 1000 1000 1

sime Darby Systems Sdn Bhd Investment holding Maiaysia 700 760 ]

Sime Darby Water Resources Sdn Bhd  Investment holding Malaysia 1000 1000 1

(forrmerly known as Marketiink (M)
Sl Bhdlf

Sime Engineering - SembCorp Malaysia  Engingering, procuremant and construction for the Malaysia +350 Y350 i

loint Venture Janamanjung Project

Sime Engineering Sdn 8hd Provision of engineering project and management Malaysia 700 700 1

services to the petroleum industry, power plant and
infrastructure works

Sime Engineering Sdn Bhd - Edwards &  Procurement and construction work Malaysia tan 7ty 1

sons Joint Venture

Sime Engineering Services Bhd - Investment holding Malaysia 700 700 1

Sime - Lum Chang Joint Venture Engineering, procurement and construction work Malaysia e tagg 1

Sime O&M {Thailand) Co Lid formerly  Provision of operation and maintenance services to Thailang woo - 3

known as Fortum Fnegy Solutions  power plants in Thailand
(Thatiand} Company Lid)

Sime Qverseas Sdn Bhd Investment holding Mataysia 1600 1000 1

Sime Surveiflance Sdn Bhd Provision of security services Malaysia 1000 1000 1

Sime-SIRiM Technologies Sdr Bhd Provision of calibration, measurement and related Malaysia 350 350 1

services

Sime Technoiogies Holdings Pte Ltd Investment holding Lahuan 700 700 4

The China Water Company Limited Infrastructure project development Cayman Islands - A333 Z

The China Water Company (Shenyang)  Investment holding British Virgin A330 - 4

Limited islands
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A7 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company Principal activities

Waeifang Sime Darby investment and investment holding and provision of management

Management Co Lid services
weifang Sime Darby Port Go Ltd Qwnership and management of port facilities
Weifang Sime Darby Water Co Lid Treatment and supply of treated water to industrial
custamers
Zibo Sime Darby Chemicals Co Ltd Production and sale of polyaluminium chioride

GENERAL TRADING, SERVICES & OTHERS

Asian Composites Manufacturing Sdn Manufacture of composite parts of aircraft
8hd

Cetliose Par Coatings Company Limited  Investment holding, manufacturing and trading of
paints and chemical products

Celliose PAR Coatings (Wuxi) Company  Manufacturing and trading of paints and chemical
Limitad praducts

Century Automotive Products SdnBhd  Sale of automotive products

Continental Sime Tyre Sdn 8hd Investment holding

Dunlogitlo Holdings San 8hd Investment holding

Bunlopillo {(Hong Kong) Limited Distribution of mattresses and reiated bedding
oroducts

Dunlopillo (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Manufacturing and distribution of mattresses and

related bedding products

Duniopillo (Middle East) FZE Distribution of mattresses and related bedding

praducts

Dunlopilio (Shenzhen; Limited Manufacturing and distribution of mattresses and
related bedding products

Dundopilic (Singapore) Ple Lid Distribution of tyres, maitresses and related bedding

products and that of investment holding

Punlopitio (vietnam) Limited Manufacturing and distribution of matiresses and

related bedding products
Hogg Robinson Westminster Hong Provision of corporate travel management services
Kong Limited (forrmerly known 35
Busingss Travel intemations!
Westminster (Hong Kong) Linmited)
Jecking Tours & Travel Limited Travel and tour agency
KN Sime Logistics Sdn Bhd Provision of transportation, freight forwarding and

warehousing and distribution services
Marsman - Westminster Travet, Ing Tour and travel agency
Megah Medica! Specialists Group Stn Operating a medical daycare feeder centre and
Bhd provision of medical, heaith care and other relatad
ancillary services

Orchard Nominees Private Limited Holding investments as a nominee
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Country of
incorporation/
Principal place
of Business
China

China

China

China

Malaysia

Hong Kong

China

Malaysia
Malaysia
Malaysia

Hong Kong
Malaysia
United Arab
Emirates
China
Singapore

Vietnam

Hong Korg

Hong Kong

Malaysia

Philippines

Malaysia

Singapore

Group's
effective
interest (%}
2007 2006

510 514
290 800
1000 800
516G -
A333 NS0
A400 A400
400 ~00
- 996
%2350 %300
1000 000
1000 -
1000 1000
1064 1000
1000 000
16000 1000
1000 1000
A343 A343
700 760
ASOD 500
A3BD A350
000 1000
10060 10060

Auditors
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47 LIST OF SURSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company

PAR Rescurces (Hoidings) Limited

PT Sime Duniopilic indonesia

PT Guru indonesia

Robt Bradford & Co Ltd

Robt Bradford Hobbs Savill Lig

SD Far East (1991) Limited

S0 Holdings Berhad

Sime Aerogreen Technology Sdn Bhd
Sime Conoco Energy Sdn Bhd

Sime Darby Eastern International
Limited

Sime Darby Eastern investments
Private Limited

Sime Darby Eastern: Limited

Sime Darby Financial Services Holdings
Sdn Bhd

Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited

Sime Darby Hongkong Finance Limited

Sime Darby Hong Kong Nominees
Limited

Sime Darby Insurance Pte Ltd
Sirme Darby investments Pty Limited

Sime Darby Lockton Insurance Brokers
Sdn Bhd
{formerly known as Sirme Alexanaer
Forbes insurance Brokers San Bhd)

Sime Darby Management Services
(singapore) Pte Lid  (ormerly krcwn
&s Sime Darby Inforration Senvice
Ple lig)

Sime Darby Nominges Limited

Sime Darby Nominees Sendirian
Berhad

Sime Darby Pension Scheme Trustees
Ltd

Sime Dasby Travel Sdn Bhd

Sime Healthcare Staff Agency Sdn Bhd

Principal activities

Investment holding and provision of management
service

Distribution of mattresses and related bedding
products

Manufacture of corrugated boxes

Investment holding and Insurance broking
Insurance broking

Investrment holding

nvesiment holding

Praduction and marketing of aeroponic vegetabies
Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

nvestment hoiding

Investment holding

investment holding

Provision of intra-group financia! senvices and
investment holding

Hoiding investments as 8 nominee

Offshore captive insurer
investment holding

Insurance and reinsurance brokers and consultanis

Provision of audit, human resources, information
technology, legal, corporate secretarial and
accounting services

Holding investments as a nominge

Holding investments as a norminee

Trustees to Pension Scheme
Travel agency

Cperation of employment agency
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Country of
incorporation/
Principal place
of Business

Hong Kong

tndonesia

Indonesta
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Malaysia
Malaysta
Maiaysia

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Maiaysia

Hong Kang

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Malaysia
Australia

Malaysia

Singapore

United Kingdom

Malaysia

United Kingdom
Malaysia

Malaysia

Group's
effective
interest (%}
2007 2006

000 1000
700 00
750
1060 1000
989 1000
000 1000
1004 1000
1000 1000
- 510
1000 1000
1000 1000
1000 1060
800 1000
060 1000
1000 000
1000 1000
1000 1000
000 1000
400 600
1000 1000
1000 000
1000 1008
1000 1000
1006 1000
1000 1000

Auditors
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47 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company Principal activities Country of Group's Auditors
incorporation/ effective
Principal place interest (%}
of Business 2007 2006
Sime Holidays Sdn Bhd Trave! and tour sgency Malaysia 1000 1000 ]
Sime Inax Sdn Bhd Manufaciure and marketing of sanitary wares Malaysia - 800 1
sime Ingurance Brokers (HK) Limited Instrance brokers and consuitants Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Sime insurance Brokers (Singapore) insurance brokers and consultants Singapore 10006 1000 2
Pte Lid
Sime fnvestments {Mauritius) Umited  Provision of financing Matritius 1000 1000 3
Sime Xansai Paints Sdn 8hd Manufacture, sales and marketing of automotive and  Malaysia AG00  A400 3
industrial paints
Sime Link Sdn Bhd Investment holding Malaysia 1000 1000 i
Sime Malaysia Region Berhad investment holding Mataysia 1060 1000 1
Sime Managing Agency Limited To aci s an insurance agent Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Sime NET Technologies Sdn Bhd Provider of information technology services Malaysia 000 1000 1
Sime Rengo Packaging (M) S¢n Bhd Manufacture and saie of corrugated fibre board Malaysia 700 00 i
cartons and boxes
Sime Rengo Packaging Singapore Manufacture and marketing of corrugated paper Singapore 666 46 6 2
Limited boxes and other paper products
sime Singapore investments Limited investmeant holding Singapore 000 1000 2z
Sirme Solution Centre Sdn Bhd Provision of accounting and other backroom Malaysia 1000 1000 i
Processing services
Sime Trave! Holdings Limited investment holding Hong Kong 1000 1000 2
Sime Trave! (Singapore) Private Limited  Trave! agency Singapara 740 700 2
Simewest Holdings Sdn Bhd Investment holding Malaysia 000 1000 1
SIMC Training & Educational Senvices  Organising educational programmes and provision of - Malaysia 1000 000 i
Sdn Bhg education
subang lava Medical Certre Sdn 8 Management of a hospital and provision of related Malaysia 1000 1000 1
healthcare facilities
Tahan Enterprise Sdn Berhad fnvestment holding Maiaysia W00 1000 ]
The China Engineers {Malaysia) Sdn General trading, distribution of building supplies and ~ Malaysia 1000 000 i
Bhd technical products and installation of long run roofing
sheets
Tesco Stores (Malaysia) Sdn 8hd Operator of retaii outiets Malaysia A3G0 AJ00 1
Union Sime Darby (Thalland) Lid Insurance and reinsurance brokers and consultants  Thailand AMRD A0 Z
westrninster Travel Limited Travel agency Hong Kang 700 70.0 Z
Westminster Travel Limited (Taiwan) Travel agency Talwar 00 700 2
wincastle Travel {HK} Limited Travel agency Hong Kong 825 525 2
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47 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company Brincipal activities

INACTIVE COMPANIES - ALL DIVISIONS
Agri-Bio Corporation Sdn Bh

Asia Power Systems Corporation

Associated Tractors Sdn Bhd

ATSS (B) 5dn 8hd

Avidat Sdn 8ha

Bacini Cycles Piy Ud

Balui Hydro Sdn Bhd

Barat Estates Sendirian 8erhac

Beijing Sime Darby Consuiting Services Company Limited

Calm Approach Invesiment, Lid

Century Batteries Sales {Mataysiz) Sdn 8hd
Continentai Cars Limited

Crescent Shipping Pte Lid

East West insurance Company Limited

Edible Products Limited

Epic Products Berhad

ERF Man and Western Star (NZ) Limited

Grand Seaway Ferries Inc

Guangzhou Sime Darby Motor Enterprises Ltd
Guangzhou Simewinner Mator Services Limited
Guangzhou Wallzce Harper Motor Services Limnited
Guardfire (Malaysia) Sdn 8hd

Hainan Sime Darby Motor Service Enterprises Company Limited

Hyundai-Sime Darby Engine Manufactuting Sdn Bhd
{formerly known 2s Sime Logistics San Bhd)

independent Water Supplier Sdr: Bhd
Malaysia-China Hydre Sdn Bhd
Mortlock Distributors Pty Ltd

Mation Smith Machinery (Shanghal) Co Ltd
paimearston North Motors Wholesale Limited
Puchong Quarry Sdn Bhd

PB Packaging Systems (Singapore) Pte Ltd
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country of
incorporation/
Principal place
of Business

Malaysia

British virgin
Islards

Maiaysia
grunei
Malaysia
Australia
Malaysia
Malaysia
China

British Virgin
islands

Malaysia
New Zealand
Singapore
Linited Kingdom
Singapore
Maiaysia
New Zeatand
Philippines
China

China

China
Malaysia
China

Malaysia

Malaysia
Malaysia
Australia

China
New Zealand
Malaysia

Singapore

Group's
effective
Interest (%}

2007 2006
000 1000
- MA7
1006 1600
W00 w000
1000 1000
1000 1000
700 700
oo 1000
1000 1000
- A59
- 994
o0 1000
- A4
792 792
1000 1000
1000 1000
1000 1000
- A5 Q
- 1008
- &G0
- 1000
A0 300
1000 100¢
000 1000
~aB0 -
o 700
1000 1000
700 700
1000 1600
854 854
6b 6 866

Auditors
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47 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company

Scandinavian Truck & Bus Sdn Bhd

Selatan Estates Sendirian Berhat

Sharikat Hadapan Berhad

Sime Aerogreen Research Sdn 8hd

Sime Bow Motors (Guangzhou Free Trade Zone) Limited
Sime Coatings $dn Bhd

Sime Consulting Sdn ghd

Sime Cycle Austratia Pty Ltd

Sime Darby Biofuels Sdn Bhd
(formerily knovwr as servitel Development San 8fid)

Sime Parby Catering Services Sdn Bhd
Sime Darby Corporation (Africa) Sdn Bhd

Sime Darby EcoSystemns Sdn ahd
fformerly kniowrn as G Strearns San Bha)

Sime Darby Land {Jchor) 5dn 8hd
Sime Darby Marine Sdn Bhd
Sime Darby Maotor Service Centre Limited

Sime Darby Nautical Sdn 8hd
{formerly knowst as Macten Engingering Son Bhdj

Sime Darby Power Sdn Bhd
Sime Darby Services Limited
Sime Darby Yangon Limited
Sime Energy Holdings Pte Lid
Sime Grove Apartments Pte Lid

Sime Health Limited

Sime Healthcare Sdn Bhd
Sime Insurance Services Scn Bhd
Sime Latex Products Sdn Bhd

Sime LCP Power Company Limited

Sirme Power Pie Ltd

Sime Technology (Beijing) Company Limited
Sime Technoiogy Ventures Sdn Bhd

Special Brand Sdn Bhd

SRIB {Far East} Pte Ltd

0

Country of
incorporation/
principal of
Business
Malaysia
Malaysia
Mialaysia
Malaysia
China
Malaysia
Malaysia

Australia

Malaysia

Malaysia
Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia
Malaysia
Hong Xong

Malaysia

Malaysia
Hong Kong
Myanmar
Singapore
Singapore

United States of
America

Malaysia
Brungi
Malaysia

Thailand

Singapore
China
Malaysia
Mataysia

Singapore

Group’s
effective
interest (%)
2007 2004

000 1000
000 1000
1000 1008
1000 1000
- 1000
1000 000
000 1000
1000 1000
10608 1000
1000 -
000 1000
1000 -
1000 1000
706 760
1000 1000
000 -
000 1000
1000 1060
1060 1000
1000 IGO0
1000 000
000 1000
1000 1000
1000 1000
1000 1000
1000 3000
1000 1000
1000 1000
1000 1000
1660 1000
1000 1000

Auditors
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47 LiST OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AS AT 30TH JUNE 2007

Name of Company Country of Group's Auditors

incorporation/ effective

Principal place interest (%)

of Business 2007 2006
Steelform Industries (Malaysia) Scn Bhd Malaysia 000 w000 1
Surfactants (Malaysia) Sendirizan Berhad Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Tengah Estates Sendirian Berhad Malaysia 004 1000 1
Ternamaram Biomass Sén Bhd Malaysia g Y00 1
Tianjin Dong Hui Technical Services Company Limited China 600 400 2
Tianjin Sime Winner Motors Trading Co Lid China &00 600 2
TMB Niaga $dn Bhd Malaysia 400 400 1
Tractors All Parts Sdn 8hd Malaysia 1000 1000 1
Tractors Auto Components Sdn Bhd Malaysia 000 1000 i
Tractors Malaysia Engineering Stn Bhd Malaysia 000 1000 1
Trans-Port Shipping Pte 1id Singapore - Mg 2 3
Universal Cars China Limited Hong ¥ong W00 1000 2
Universal Cars Holdings Limited Hong Kong 450 450 2
Wuxi PAR Resources Coatings and Chemicals Company Limited China 1000 1000 2
Xiamen Xiangyu Sime Darby CEL Machinery Trading Co Ltd China 1000 1000 2
Xinet Pte Ltd Singapore - A294 3
Xinjiang Sime Darby Property Co Lid China 1000 - 4
Yaala Pembangunan Stn Bhd Malaysia iC00 1000 1
Zhuhai Jaya Shipbuilding Co Lid China - A0S 3

Notes:

ar

er

Associates of Sime Darby

Auvte Bavaria Sdo Bhd. which is a subsidiary of Sime Darby, has a 49% equity interest in BMW Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Notwithstanding this. the investment in BMW Malaysia Sdn Bhd has been classified as an investment [and not as
an assovciated company} in view of the Ffact that Auto Bavaria Sdn Bhd is entitled to receive an aggregate
guaranteed dividend for the First § years.

Cortinental Sime Tyre Sdn Bhd group has been classified as an investment in the Financial statements following
the dilution of Sime Darby’'s eguity interest in the company from 49% to 308 in view of an arrangement that Sime
Darby is entitled to receive gusranteed annual dividend

Jointly-contrelled entity

listed on a stock exchange

Subsidiaries and associates which are audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia

Subsidiaries and asgscciates which are audited by overseas Ffimms assoeciated with PricevaterhouseCoopers,
Malaysia

Subsidiaries and associates which are audited by firms npot associated with FricewaterhouseCoopers. Malaysia

Subsidiaries and associates which have not appeinted auditors.
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48 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fingncial statements have been approved for issug in accordance with a resoiution of the Beard of Directors on 28th August 2007
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

We, Tan Sri Dato' Serl (O ) Ahmad Sarjl bin Abdul Hamid and Dato' Seri Ahmad Zubair @ Ahmad Zublr bin Hafl Murshid, two of the Directors of Sime Darby
Berhad. do hereby state that, in the opinfon of the Directors, the financlal statements setout onpeges & to 9 2are drawn up 50 &5 to.give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 30th June 2007 and of the resuits of the Group and of the Company and the cash
flows of the Group and of the Company for the year ended on that date, in accordance with the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board aporoved
accounting standards In Malaysla for Entities Gther than Private Entltles and the provisions of the Companles Act. 1965

in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directars
dated 28th August 2007

(i

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri (Or y Ahmad Saril bin Abdul Hamid

' Chalrman
A
.-___,,..:b . /
Kuala Lumpur Date’ Serl ahmad Zubalr @ Ahmad Zubir bin Ha)l Murshid
28th August 2007 Group Chief Exacutive

STATUTORY DECLARATION
I. Dato” Sekhar Krishnan, the officer primarily responsible for the financlal management of Sime Darby Berhad, do salemnly and sincerely declare that the

financial statements set ot onpages 8 to 92 are. to the best of my krowledge and belef, correct, and | make this solermn declaration
consclentiously befieving the same to be trug, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1950

SUBSCRIBED AND SOLEMNLY DECLARED by the abovenamed Dato’ Sekhar Krishnan, st Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia on 28th August 2007

K Mariascosay
Commissloner for Oaths (No. W344)
Kuaia Lumpur

{M1A 2337)
Group Chief Financial Officer

NO: W 344
K. MARIASOOSAY

TINGKAT 3, WISMA YAKIN
JALAN MASJID INDIA
50100 KUALA LUMPLUR
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Chartered Accountants

{1th Fioor Wisma Sime Darby
Jalan Raja Laut

P O 8ox 10192

50708 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone +60 3 2693 1077
Facsimile +60 3 26893 0987
WWW. pWE com/my

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

SIME DARBY BERHAD
{Compzny No. 417539-M)

We have audited the financial statements set out on pages 8 to 92. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's Directors. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audi, on these financial statements and to report our opinion to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
to any other person for the content of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved auditing standards in Malaysia. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accouniing principles used and significant estimates made by the Directors, as weli as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1965 and MASB approved accounting standards in Malaysia for Entities Other than Private
Entities so as to give a true and fair view of:

{i) the matters required by Section 169 of the Companies Act, 1965 to be dealt with in the
financial statements; and

{i) the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2007 and of the
results and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended on
that date;

and

(b) the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the
Company and by the subsidiary companies of which we have acted as auditors have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The names of the subsidiary companies of which we have not acted as auditors are indicated in Note 47

to the financial statements. We have considered the financial statements of these subsidiary companies
and the auditors’ reports thereon.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

SIME DARBY BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Company No. 41759-M)

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated
with the Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes
of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and we have received satisfactory information
and explanations required by us for those purposes.

The auditors’ report on the financial statements of the subsidiary companies were not subject to any
qualification and did not include any comment made under subsection 3 of Section 174 of the Act.

[

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPER DATO' AHMAD JOHAN BIN MOHAMMAD RASLAN
{No. AF: 1148) (No. 1867/09/08 ()
Chartered Accountants Partner of the firm

Kuala Lumpur
28 August 2007
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